
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
Meeting Announcement & Agenda at 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, May 16, 2016 
Village Hall, 810 Shorewood Boulevard  

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Statement of Public Notice 
4. Procedures Orientation 
5. Appearances and Communications  

i) Lucy Richards – Post Farm Park Playground Project 
6. Elect President Pro Tem 
7. Board Matters 

A. Payment of Bills 
B. Consent Agenda 

i) April 18 regular and closed session minutes 
ii) Street Use Permits:  

a) Her Madison Half Marathon – June 26, 2016 
b) Let’s Eat Out! Food Carts – Thursdays June 9-August 4 
c) July 4th Parade & Fireworks – July 4 

iii) Block Party Permits:  
a) Wood Lane Block Party (Aleasha Anderson) – June 11, 2016 
b) Independence Day Dance – July 2, 2016 

iv) Temporary Class “B” Retailers License – Shorewood Hills Garden Club 
on June 18, 2016 

v) Transient Merchant Permit – Let’s Eat Out! Food Carts 
vi) Hire part time seasonal employees for DPW 

C. Ordinances 
i) Consider tabled third reading of an Ordinance L-2015-11 amending 

section 7.08(5) Parking, Stopping and Standing Regulated (Weekend two-
hour parking restrictions on Marshall Court) 

ii) Consider tabled second and possible third reading of an Ordinance L-
2016-2 amending section 17.07(10)(b) of the municipal code regarding 
vicious dogs 

iii) Consider first reading of an Ordinance L-2016-4 Changing the zoning 
classification of property located at 2712 Marshall Court from C-3 
Medical Office Commercial District to a Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) district 

iv) Consider first and possible second reading of an Ordinance L-2016-5 
Changing the zoning classification of property located at 2725-2801 
Marshall Court from C-3 Medical Office Commercial District to a Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) district 

1 of 2 



              
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disability Act that requires the 
meeting or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format, should contact the Municipal Clerk, 810 Shorewood Boulevard, or 
phone 267-2680, during regular business hours at least 48 hours before the meeting so that reasonable arrangements can be made to 
accommodate each request. 
 
It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the Village of Shorewood Hills who are not 
members of the above committee may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information. However, no formal action will be 
taken by any governmental body at the above meeting other than the committee identified in the caption of this notice. 
 

2 of 2 

D. New Business Resolutions and Motions 
i) Consider purchase of replacement police server for vehicle video system  
ii) Consider authorizing use of Old Village Hall for Fire house Library  
iii) Consider July date for Village facilities work session  

E. Appointments  
i) Gary Johnson to Waterfront Committee 
ii) Andy Stoltman to Public Health & Safety Committee 

8. Reports of Officials and Committees 
A. Village President Pro Tem 

i) Video: In the Scope of Your Authority Preventing Public Officials 
Liability 

B. Village Administrator 
i) Four Corners Park Play Structure Issues 

C. Personnel Committee 
D. Finance Committee 
E. Plan Commission 
F. Public Works Committee 
G. Services Committee 
H. Public Health & Safety Committee 
I. Joint West Committee 
J. Recreation Committee 
K. Parks Committee 
L. Pool Committee 
 
Please take notice that the Board may adjourn to Closed Session as per §19.85(1)(e) due 
to bargaining reasons and may reconvene to open session as per Wisconsin State Statutes 
19.85(2) to address any business that may be the result of the deliberations made in 
closed session (Tax Increment Agreement 2727 Marshall Court). 
 

9. Adjourn 



NOTES TO THE AGENDA MAY 16, 2016 
 
Appearances and Communications  
Lucy Richards – Post Farm Park Playground Project - The Chair of the Ad Hoc Committee 
will provide an update on the progress being made. Our Village Forester has been instrumental in 
developing and coordinating resources and the Crew is also very involved.   
 
Elect President Pro Tem –  By code the Village  Board needs to  elect a President  Pro Tem 
each year who is then able to act in the absence or illness of the Village President to preside  over 
meetings, sign contracts, ordinances etc. Trustee Benforado currently serves in this capacity and 
is the senior member on the Board. 
 
Payment of Bills - Prepaids for April: $83,656.31 May Board Bills: $150,216.47 
TOTAL: $233,872.78 
 
Consent Agenda 
April 18 regular and closed session minutes – Enclosed. 
 
Street Use Permits: Her Madison Half Marathon – June 26, 2016, Lets Eat Out Food Carts 
Thursdays June 9-August 4, July 4th Parade & Fireworks – July 4 
All are enclosed and recommended for approval. 
 
Block Party Permits: Wood Lane Block Party (Aleasha Anderson) – June 11, 2016 
Independence Day Dance – July 2, 2016 
Enclosed and recommended for approval.  
 
Temporary Class “B” Retailers License – Shorewood Hills Garden Club on June 18, 2016 
Enclosed and recommended for approval. 
 
Transient Merchant Permit – Lets Eat Out food Carts Thursdays June 9- August 4 
The application is in the packet. 
 
Seasonal Public Works Hires  
Memo from Crew Chief Mitmoen with names and wage rates is included in the packet.  
 
Ordinances 
Consider tabled third reading of an Ordinance L-2015-11 amending section 7.08(5) 
Parking, Stopping and Standing Regulated (Weekend two-hour parking restrictions on 
Marshall Court) – Further discussion on parking in the context of the rezoning requests for 
Marshall Court that  will be discussed later on the agenda  have been on going, but not specific  
to this ordinance in particular.  
 
Consider tabled second and possible third reading of an Ordinance L-2016-2 amending 
section 17.07(10)(b) of the municipal code regarding vicious dogs –  The Pubic Health and 
Safety Committee has worked closely with the Village  Attorney on this ordinance and the 

1 of 2 



 
 

2 of 2 

Committee is  recommending approval.  A redlined version is enclosed so that you are able to 
review the changes that have been made, as well as a summary memo from legal counsel. 
 
Consider first reading of an Ordinance L-2016-4 Changing the zoning classification of 
property located at 2712 Marshall Court from C-3 Medical Office Commercial District to a 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) district –The Plan Commission is recommending approval 
of the GDP and SIP  rezoning for the expansion for the Ronald McDonald House. The plans are 
enclosed in your packet. Also enclosed is a review memo from the Village planning consultant.  
 
 Consider first  and possible reading of an Ordinance L-2016-3 Changing the zoning 
classification of property located at 2725-2801 Marshall Court from C-3 Medical Office 
Commercial District to a Planned Unit Development (PUD) district – The Plan Commission 
has recommended approval of the  rezoning application that is enclosed in your packet  on 6-1 
vote. Minutes from that meeting are enclosed. The Commission had this matter on their agenda 
for several meetings and the plans have been revised over the course of those meetings to address 
concerns of the Commission, as well as some that came out of the initial public hearing.  A 
presentation of the project will be given, as well as elevations, the traffic and shadow studies.  
Analyses performed by Village planning and traffic engineering consultants are also enclosed 
that were utilized by the Commission in coming to their recommendation. Traffic and planning 
consultants will be in attendance. 
   
 
New Business Resolutions and Motions 
 
Consider purchase of replacement police server for vehicle video system  
Please refer to the enclosed memo from the Police Chief and price quote. This is a budgeted 
purchase and will ensure the continued integrity of the on car video system. Should the Village at 
some point also consider deployment of body cameras, this system will also allow for that 
addition.   
 
Consider authorizing use of Old Village Hall for Fire house Library  
The Recreation Committee is requesting that the Village authorize use of a portion of 1006 
Shorewood Boulevard to house an informal community library. The building has been rekeyed to 
address security concerns. The key will be checked out and returned to Village Hall. To begin 
with the space will likely be open one or two times per week for a few hours. A checklist is 
being developed for volunteers to use for opening and closing the building.   Plans are to get 
started in early June if approved.  
 
The Committee has formed a Firehouse Library Mission statement: 
 
“The purpose of the Firehouse Library is to provide a free library and free community space for 
small-scale activities. The Library will be located at the Old Village Hall.  The Library shall be 
donation-based and run by Firehouse Library Club volunteers.  Volunteers will be 
present at all times when the Library is open to the public.” 
 
 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     1 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  04/30/2016 - 04/30/2016 May 13, 2016  02:25pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

100-211535 GENERAL FUND - AFLAC INSURANCE
1210 AFLAC INSURANCE PREMIUM 04282016 04/25/2016 325.88 PD

23012 WAGEWORKS SERVICE FEE 4302016 04/30/2016 177.00 PD
502.88   *

100-211539 GENERAL FUND - DENTAL INSURANCE - EMPLOYEE
4213 DELTA DENTAL OF WISCONSIN EMPLOYEES'  PREMIUM 4055 04/25/2016 885.76 PD

100-211541 GENERAL FUND - ICMA PAYABLE
9122 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 INC. PAYROLL CONTR. 04232016 04/23/2016 350.00 PD

100-211543 GENERAL FUND - WI DEFERRED PAYABLE
7714 GREAT WEST PAYROLL CONTRIBUTIONS 04242016 04/26/2016 1,942.00 PD

100-211545 GENERAL FUND - FED/FICA/MED TAX PAYABLE
6210 FEDERAL WITHHOLDING EFTPS FED WITHHOLDING 04272016 04/27/2016 12,686.18 PD

100-211549 GENERAL FUND - SWT PAYABLE
23387 WI DEPT OF REVENUE (EMP W/H) STATE WITHHOLDING TAX 04252016 04/25/2016 2,186.90 PD

100-211551 GENERAL FUND - RETIREMENT PAYABLE
23370 WI DEPT OF EMPLOYE TRUST FUND WI RETIREM. PAYMENT 04292016 04/29/2016 12,661.54 PD

100-51-5130-210 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - LEGAL - LEGAL: GEN. ADVICE & COUNSEL
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-CORBAE CUP 04252016 04/25/2016 312.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BOARDMAN & CLARK-EMPLOYE 04252016 04/25/2016 78.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BOARDMAN & CLARK-MOBILE TO 04252016 04/25/2016 888.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-GEN MUNIC ADVICE 04252016 04/25/2016 315.00 PD

1,593.00  *

          Total 100-51-5130-210 1,593.00 

100-51-5130-211 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - LEGAL - LEGAL: ORDINANCE PROSECUTIONS
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-ORD. ENFORCEMEN 04252016 04/25/2016 7,072.57 PD

          Total 100-51-5130-211 7,072.57 

100-51-5141-320 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - ADMINISTRATION - ADMIN: DUES & SEMINARS
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ICMA-MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 04252016 04/25/2016 896.00 PD

          Total 100-51-5141-320 896.00 

100-51-5142-310 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - CLERK - CLERK: SUP & EXPENSES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA OFFICE DEPOT-COLORED COPY 04252016 04/25/2016 66.43 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA OFFICE DEPOT-OFFICE COPY P 04252016 04/25/2016 107.96 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VERIZON-CELL ADMIN 04252016 04/25/2016 4.27 PD

178.66  *

          Total 100-51-5142-310 178.66 

100-51-5143-210 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - PERSONNEL - PERSONNEL: MEDICAL EVALUATIONS
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA DEAN HEALTH-EMPLOY EXAM D 04252016 04/25/2016 87.00 PD



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     2 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  04/30/2016 - 04/30/2016 May 13, 2016  02:25pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total 100-51-5143-210 87.00 

100-51-5143-300 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - PERSONNEL - PERSONNEL: RETIREES INS PREM
4213 DELTA DENTAL OF WISCONSIN ANNUITANT PREMIUM 4055 04/25/2016 315.94 PD

          Total 100-51-5143-300 315.94 

100-51-5144-340 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - ELECTIONS - ELECTIONS: OPERATING SUPPLIES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BEAR GRAPHICS-VOTING SUPP 04252016 04/25/2016 195.12 PD

          Total 100-51-5144-340 195.12 

100-51-5145-210 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - DATA PROCESSING - D.P.: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA GOOGLE APPS-EMAIL SERVICE 04252016 04/25/2016 170.00 PD

          Total 100-51-5145-210 170.00 

100-51-5145-340 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - DATA PROCESSING - D.P.: OPERATIONS EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CHARTER-TV & INTERNET 04252016 04/25/2016 217.45 PD

          Total 100-51-5145-340 217.45 

100-51-5151-210 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - FINANCE - FINANCE: AUDIT SERVICES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAKER TILLY-PROFESSIONAL A 04252016 04/25/2016 5,537.00 PD

          Total 100-51-5151-210 5,537.00 

100-51-5160-222 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ATT-PHONES APR 2016 04252016 04/25/2016 394.20 PD

          Total 100-51-5160-222 394.20 

100-51-5160-240 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: CONTRACTUAL
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MONONA PLUMB-FIRE INSPECT 04252016 04/25/2016 160.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAY TOWEL-TOWELS MATS, MO 04252016 04/25/2016 99.41 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAY TOWEL-TOWELS MATS, MO 04252016 04/25/2016 298.23 PD

557.64   *

          Total VILLAGE BOARD 17,214.58 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     3 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  04/30/2016 - 04/30/2016 May 13, 2016  02:25pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total 100-51-5160-240 557.64 

100-52-5210-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: OPERATING EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VERIZON-CELL PD 04252016 04/25/2016 174.97 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PELLITTERI-DATA SHRED CLEAN 04252016 04/25/2016 44.42 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT-DRUG T 04252016 04/25/2016 179.75 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA GORDON FLESCH-COPIER USAG 04252016 04/25/2016 49.06 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA AMAZON-ROLLING CART FOR P 04252016 04/25/2016 97.40 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA WALGREENS-NEEDLE DISPOSA 04252016 04/25/2016 6.49 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA WEAVER AUTO-SUPPLIES FOR W 04252016 04/25/2016 20.19 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PBS-BLOOD DRAW G GARCIA/C 04252016 04/25/2016 54.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA THE UPS STORE-RETURNED DR 04252016 04/25/2016 17.40 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA UPH-BLOOD DRAW F NORRIS 04252016 04/25/2016 32.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CHAMPIONSHIP AWARDS-SHAD 04252016 04/25/2016 45.12 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA THE UPS STORE-SENT L3 VIDEO 04252016 04/25/2016 43.87 PD

764.67   *

          Total 100-52-5210-340 764.67 

100-52-5210-341 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: UNIFORM EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA SHOE BOX-BOOT FOR POLICE C 04252016 04/25/2016 259.20 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA LARK-PANTS, POLO, SHIRT FOR 04252016 04/25/2016 210.85 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA J.G. UNIFORMS-OUTER VEST CO 04252016 04/25/2016 137.38 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MSDN RECHARG-NAME TAG OF 04252016 04/25/2016 12.59 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA LARK-CAP, JACKET, SHELL FOR 04252016 04/25/2016 259.30 PD

879.32   *

          Total 100-52-5210-341 879.32 

100-52-5210-350 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA INTERSTATE-NEW BATTERY 201 04252016 04/25/2016 112.95 PD

          Total PUBLIC SERVICES 1,756.94 

          Total 100-52-5210-350 112.95 

100-53-5300-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - PUBLIC WORKS - AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP.
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MADISON TRUCK-FLASHER TK1 04252016 04/25/2016 60.80 PD

          Total 100-53-5300-340 60.80 

100-53-5320-350 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - GARAGE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA NAPA MOTOR PARTS-BULB, FILT 04252016 04/25/2016 105.59 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MENARDS-REPAIR SHOP SUPPL 04252016 04/25/2016 132.48 PD

238.07  *



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     4 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  04/30/2016 - 04/30/2016 May 13, 2016  02:25pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total 100-53-5320-350 238.07 

100-53-5362-290 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - REFUSE COLLECTION - REFUSE COLL: CONTRACTUAL SERVC
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PELLITTERI-TRASH/RECYCLE SH 04252016 04/25/2016 293.75 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PELLITTERI-TRASH/RECYCLE 81 04252016 04/25/2016 7,703.14 PD

7,996.89  *

          Total 100-53-5362-290 7,996.89 

100-53-5365-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - LEAF COLLECTION - RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CONNEY SAFETY-GLASS, HELM 04252016 04/25/2016 246.70 PD

          Total PUBLIC WORKS 8,542.46 

          Total 100-53-5365-340 246.70 

100-55-5500-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA KLEIN-DICKERT-WINDOWS @ H 04252016 04/25/2016 176.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAPLES-FLOOR WAX 04252016 04/25/2016 44.37 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA COPPS-COFFEE 04252016 04/25/2016 19.98 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA HELLENBRAND WATER-810 SOF 04252016 04/25/2016 22.95 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MIDWEST ALARM-REPAIR @ 100 04252016 04/25/2016 435.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CRESCENT ELECTRIC-810 LIGHT 04252016 04/25/2016 136.79 PD

835.09   *

          Total 100-55-5500-340 835.09 

100-55-5520-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - PARKS - PARKS:OPERATING EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VERIZON-CELL FORESTER 04252016 04/25/2016 31.04 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CITY OF MADISON TREAS-FIRE 04252016 04/25/2016 50.00 PD

81.04   *

          Total NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES 916.13 

          Total 100-55-5520-340 81.04 

100-57-5752-815 GENERAL FUND - CAPITAL OUTLAY: GENERAL - CAPITAL OUTLAY: PUBLIC SAFETY - CAP OUTLAY: PD SAFETY EQP
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA OTTO ENGINEER-RADIO EARPH 04252016 04/25/2016 226.84 PD

          Total 100-57-5752-815 226.84 

100-57-5752-817 GENERAL FUND - CAPITAL OUTLAY: GENERAL - CAPITAL OUTLAY: PUBLIC SAFETY - CAP OUTLAY: PD EQUIPMENT
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VORTEX OPTICS-SCOPE A MUR 04252016 04/25/2016 155.40 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ENTRY ERROR:MENARDS CHAR 04252016 04/25/2016 155.40 - PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ENTRY ERROR:MENARDS CHAR 04252016 04/25/2016 155.40 - PD



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     5 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  04/30/2016 - 04/30/2016 May 13, 2016  02:25pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VORTEX OPTICS-SCOPE FOR A 04252016 04/25/2016 155.40 PD
.00   *

          Total CAPITAL OUTLAY: GENERAL 226.84 

          Total 100-57-5752-817 .00 

          Total GENERAL FUND 59,872.21 

200-53-5361-340 SEWER DIVISION FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - GENERAL OPERATIONS - OPERATING SUPPLIES EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA SAFETY FIRST-SEMI-ANN CALIB 04252016 04/25/2016 85.00 PD

          Total PUBLIC WORKS 85.00 

          Total 200-53-5361-340 85.00 

          Total SEWER DIVISION FUND 85.00 

210-51-5142-310 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - CLERK - CLERK: OFFICE SUPLY & EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA EconoPrint-Recreation Packet. 04252016 04/25/2016 1,292.04 PD

          Total 210-51-5142-310 1,292.04 

210-51-5160-222 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: TELEPHONE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MAILCHIMP-EMAIL SYSTEM 04252016 04/25/2016 25.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA DELL-NEW COMPUTER FOR MG 04252016 04/25/2016 631.95 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ATT-UVERSE 04252016 04/25/2016 50.00 PD

706.95   *

          Total 210-51-5160-222 706.95 

210-51-5160-350 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: REPAIR/MAINT EXP.
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA MENARDS-POOL SHED 04252016 04/25/2016 52.13 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA RECREONICS-CHEM TUBING, FI 04252016 04/25/2016 978.36 PD

1,030.49   *

          Total LEGAL 3,029.48 

          Total 210-51-5160-350 1,030.49 

210-55-5542-340 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL: OPERATING SUPLY & EXP.



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     6 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  04/30/2016 - 04/30/2016 May 13, 2016  02:25pm 
 

10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA SHOPKEEP-CHECKER REGISTE 04252016 04/25/2016 9.99 PD

          Total 210-55-5542-340 9.99 

210-55-5542-343 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - CONCESSIONS EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA SHOPKEEP-CONCESSION REGIS 04252016 04/25/2016 9.99 PD

          Total 210-55-5542-343 9.99 

210-55-5542-346 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - SWIM/DIVE/BALLET EXPENSES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA TEAMUNIFY-SWIM/DIVE TEAM W 04252016 04/25/2016 299.00 PD

          Total 210-55-5542-346 299.00 

210-55-5542-350 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - REPAIR/MAINT: SUPLY & EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA DURAFLEX INTL-DIVING BOARD 04252016 04/25/2016 1,629.00 PD

          Total 210-55-5542-350 1,629.00 

210-55-5542-351 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - REPAIR/MAINT: POOL EQUIPMENT
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PREMIUMPOLYPATIOS-POLYWO 04252016 04/25/2016 1,350.02 PD

          Total POOL OPERATIONS 3,298.00 

          Total 210-55-5542-351 1,350.02 

          Total POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 6,327.48 

450-51-5141-120 450 - 450-51 - 450-51-5141 - PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMINISTRATN
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-ARBOR CROSSING 04252016 04/25/2016 480.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-ATT PLAZA 04252016 04/25/2016 303.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-LENHART PROJECT 04252016 04/25/2016 105.00 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CAPITAL NEWS-JRB NOTICE (50 04252016 04/25/2016 15.74 PD

903.74   *

          Total 450-51-5141-120 903.74 

450-51-5141-310 450 - 450-51 - 450-51-5141 - CLERK:SUPPLY/EXPENSE
23388 WISCONSIN DEPT. OF REVENUE TIF 3 ANNUAL FEE 04262016 04/25/2016 150.00 PD

          Total 450-51 1,053.74 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     7 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  04/30/2016 - 04/30/2016 May 13, 2016  02:25pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total 450-51-5141-310 150.00 

          Total 450 1,053.74 

470-51-5141-120 470 - 470-51 - 470-51-5141 - PLANNING LEGAL & ADMIN-PYARE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA CAPITAL NEWS-JRB NOTICE (50 04252016 04/25/2016 15.74 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA STAFFORD-PYARE REDEVELOP 04252016 04/25/2016 12,942.90 PD

12,958.64   *

          Total 470-51-5141-120 12,958.64 

470-51-5141-310 470 - 470-51 - 470-51-5141 - CLERK: SUPPLY/EXPENSE
23388 WISCONSIN DEPT. OF REVENUE TIF 4 ANNUAL FEE 04262016 04/25/2016 150.00 PD

          Total 470-51 13,108.64 

          Total 470-51-5141-310 150.00 

          Total 470 13,108.64 

600-53-0630-340 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - CHEMICALS - SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA VERIZON-CELL DPW 04252016 04/25/2016 34.19 PD
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA ALOFT HOTELS-WATER CONFER 04252016 04/25/2016 376.05 PD

410.24   *

          Total 600-53-0630-340 410.24 

600-53-0682-210 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - MISC GENERAL EXPENSES - OUTSIDE SERVICES
10635 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA BAKER TILLY-PROF WATER RAT 04252016 04/25/2016 2,799.00 PD

          Total WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS 3,209.24 

          Total 600-53-0682-210 2,799.00 

          Total WATER DEPARTMENT FUND 3,209.24 

          Grand Total: 83,656.31 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     1 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

100-211532 GENERAL FUND - LIFE INSURANCE - EMPLOYEE
13397 MINNESOTA MUTUAL LIFE INS CO PREMIUM 5122016 05/12/2016 765.94 

100-211541 GENERAL FUND - ICMA PAYABLE
9122 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 457 INC. PAYROLL CONTR. 05122016 05/12/2016 350.00 PD

100-211543 GENERAL FUND - WI DEFERRED PAYABLE
7714 GREAT WEST PAYROLL CONTRIBUTIONS 05092016 05/09/2016 1,942.00 PD

100-211545 GENERAL FUND - FED/FICA/MED TAX PAYABLE
6210 FEDERAL WITHHOLDING EFTPS FED WITHHOLDING 05112016 05/11/2016 12,215.13 PD

100-211549 GENERAL FUND - SWT PAYABLE
23387 WI DEPT OF REVENUE (EMP W/H) STATE WITHHOLDING TAX 05132016 05/13/2016 2,088.81 PD

100-211551 GENERAL FUND - RETIREMENT PAYABLE
23370 WI DEPT OF EMPLOYE TRUST FUND WI  RETIREMENT PAYM. 05052016 05/05/2016 12,493.65 PD

100-45-4511-000 GENERAL FUND - FINES, FORFEITS, & PENALTIES - 100-45-4511 - COURT FINES
4038 DANE CO TREASURER SHARED COURT FINES 4302016 04/30/2016 1,465.20 

23350 WI DEPT ADMINISTRATION: COURT SHARED COURT FINES 4302016 04/30/2016 2,780.40 
4,245.60   *

          Total 100-45-4511-000 4,245.60 

100-51-5112-310 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - COMMITTEES - COMMITTEES: SUP & EXPENSE
1000822 AZ CONSULTANTS LLC POLICE COMMUNITY ENGAGEM 5122016 05/12/2016 1,425.00 

          Total 100-51-5112-310 1,425.00 

100-51-5142-310 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - CLERK - CLERK: SUP & EXPENSES
13041 MDS/SWAP ADMIN - SUPPLIES 4/16MD22889 04/27/2016 10.78 
23375 WI DEPT OF JUSTICE- L1375 BACKGROUND CHECK- LIQ 5022016 05/02/2016 7.00 

1000825 KNISELY, BARB ADMIN FEE 04292016 04/29/2016 25.00 -
1000826 BURGESS, CURTIS ADMIN FEE 4252016 04/25/2016 25.00 -
1000827 BRAUN, SARA ADMIN FEE 4272016 04/27/2016 25.00 -

57.22 -  *

          Total 100-51-5142-310 57.22 -

100-51-5142-322 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - CLERK - CLERK: TRAINING/SEMINARS
2450 BLACKHAWK COUNTRY CLUB INC DANE CO CLERKS LUNCHEON 4292016 04/29/2016 741.39 

          Total 100-51-5142-322 741.39 

100-51-5153-210 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - ASSESSOR - ASSESSOR: CONTRACTUAL EXPENSE
1100 ACCURATE APPRAISAL LLC ASSESS. SERVICES-2016 5122016 05/12/2016 4,580.00 

          Total 100-51-5153-210 4,580.00 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     2 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

100-51-5160-220 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 810 & 1008 SHOREWOOD BLVD 40362758 05/09/2016 3,471.35 

          Total 100-51-5160-220 3,471.35 

100-51-5160-222 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE
3220 CENTURY LINK CENTREX LINES-APRIL 1374088237 04/30/2016 7.40 

          Total 100-51-5160-222 7.40 

100-51-5160-530 GENERAL FUND - VILLAGE BOARD - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDGS & PLANT: RENTAL EXPENSE
4207 DEGEN AND ASSOCIATES LLC RENT - 5133 UNIVERSITY AVE 5102016 05/10/2016 2,113.66 

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 5133 UNIVERSITY 40362758 05/09/2016 23.62 
2,137.28   *

          Total VILLAGE BOARD 12,305.20 

          Total 100-51-5160-530 2,137.28 

100-52-5210-210 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
23374 WI DEPT OF JUSTICE-TIME TIME SYS. ACCESS   T21131 04/15/2016 276.00 

          Total 100-52-5210-210 276.00 

100-52-5210-310 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXP
13041 MDS/SWAP PD OFFICE SUPPLIES 4/16MD22889 04/27/2016 68.11 

          Total 100-52-5210-310 68.11 

100-52-5210-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: OPERATING EXPENSE
16034 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC AED BATTERY PD 82132132 04/28/2016 324.99 

1000688 COMPUTER MAGIC INC REPAIRS TO PD SERVER/ACCE 20142405 04/21/2016 294.00 
618.99   *

          Total 100-52-5210-340 618.99 

100-52-5210-370 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - POLICE DEPARTMENT - POLICE: FUEL & OIL
19311 SHELL OIL CO:POLICE ACCT FED CREDIT 79030045605 05/13/2016 46.29 -
19311 SHELL OIL CO:POLICE ACCT FUEL FOR SQUADS 79030045605 05/13/2016 534.49 

488.20   *

          Total 100-52-5210-370 488.20 

100-52-5260-290 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC SERVICES - EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION - DANE COUNTY RADIO CONTRACT
4036 DANE CO TREASURER DANE COM- 2014 MISSED INVOIC 4212016 04/21/2016 1,305.00 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     3 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total PUBLIC SERVICES 2,756.30 

          Total 100-52-5260-290 1,305.00 

100-53-5300-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - PUBLIC WORKS - AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP.
4017 DANE CO HWY & TRANS DEPT 69 YARDS OF SALT 25988 03/31/2016 5,796.00 

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 4502 OLD MIDDLETON ROAD 40362758 05/09/2016 28.47 
5,824.47   *

          Total 100-53-5300-340 5,824.47 

100-53-5320-350 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - GARAGE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT
1106 ACE HILLDALE  (DPW) SHOP 29800 04/01/2016 25.84 

          Total 100-53-5320-350 25.84 

100-53-5320-370 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - GARAGE: FUEL & OIL
19841 STOP-N-GO DPW GAS GAS - DPW 4302016 04/30/2016 356.92 

          Total 100-53-5320-370 356.92 

100-53-5342-220 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - STREET LIGHTING - STREET LIGHTING: POWER
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 2914 OXF,900 SH.BLV,1400 WOO 40362758 05/09/2016 50.20 
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC STREET LIGHTING 40362758 05/09/2016 1,505.99 

1,556.19   *

          Total 100-53-5342-220 1,556.19 

100-53-5344-350 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - STORM SEWERS - STORM SEWERS: DISCHARGE PERMIT
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF 4694 UNIV AVE-STORMWATER 9299490 04/21/2016 10.90 

          Total 100-53-5344-350 10.90 

100-53-5365-340 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - LEAF COLLECTION - RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP
13365 MIDDLETON FARMERS CO-OP INC PITCH FORKS 273144 04/13/2016 56.98 

          Total 100-53-5365-340 56.98 

100-53-5365-370 GENERAL FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - LEAF COLLECTION - RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:FUEL & OIL
19845 STOP-N-GO DPW DIESEL DIESEL  FUEL 4302016 04/30/2016 230.79 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     4 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total PUBLIC WORKS 8,062.09 

          Total 100-53-5365-370 230.79 

100-55-5500-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE
1106 ACE HILLDALE  (DPW) HARDWARE 29824 03/29/2016 2.20 
1106 ACE HILLDALE  (DPW) BENCH SEWER REPAIR 29920 04/14/2016 8.99 
1106 ACE HILLDALE  (DPW) LIGHT BULBS 1008 29928 04/25/2016 29.97 
1106 ACE HILLDALE  (DPW) MARKING PAINT 29936 04/19/2016 14.98 
4215 DELUXE DISTRIBUTORS SOAP DISPENSER 4536 04/24/2016 80.40 
4215 DELUXE DISTRIBUTORS HANDLE 4536 04/24/2016 6.30 
4215 DELUXE DISTRIBUTORS WASH BRUSH 4536 04/24/2016 36.00 

13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3302 BLACKH, 3100 HARV, 1004 40362758 05/09/2016 125.69 
13041 MDS/SWAP DPW JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 4/16MD22889 04/27/2016 449.67 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF WATER/FIRE- 810 SW BLVD 9297432 04/20/2016 27.79 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF 810 SW BLVD-FIRE PROTECTION 9299395 04/21/2016 19.47 
23594 WISCONSIN VALVE SERVICE 1 VALVE TEST 1008 SHWD BLVD 465067 04/27/2016 135.00 

936.46   *

          Total 100-55-5500-340 936.46 

100-55-5500-700 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - COMMUNITY GARDENS
13365 MIDDLETON FARMERS CO-OP INC GARDEN STAKES   273144 04/13/2016 19.98 

          Total 100-55-5500-700 19.98 

100-55-5520-320 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - PARKS - PARKS:PROJECTS
7625 GOOD OAK LLC HERBICIDE TREATMENT IN PAR 16-130 05/09/2016 1,303.00 

1000824 MONACELLI STONE COMPANY INC STONE BENCHES MEMORIAL M85244 04/14/2016 980.00 
2,283.00   *

          Total 100-55-5520-320 2,283.00 

100-55-5520-340 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - PARKS - PARKS:OPERATING EXPENSE
23375 WI DEPT OF JUSTICE- L1375 BACKGROUND CHECK-FORESTE 5022016 05/02/2016 35.00 

1000580 STRATMAN, GEORGENE LOVE MADISON EXPENSES 5102016 05/10/2016 20.98 
55.98   *

          Total 100-55-5520-340 55.98 

100-55-5520-342 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - PARKS - VILLAGE TREE SALES COSTS
16637 POSSIBILITY PLACE NURSERY PRIVATE TREE SALES 00113041 04/15/2016 109.00 

999823 FRIENDS OF THE ARBORETUM PRIVATE TREE SALES 05052016 05/05/2016 746.00 
855.00   *

          Total 100-55-5520-342 855.00 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     5 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

100-55-5523-343 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - HORTICULTURIST - HORTICULTURE: REFORESTATION
16637 POSSIBILITY PLACE NURSERY VILLAGE TREES 00113041 04/15/2016 1,065.50 

999823 FRIENDS OF THE ARBORETUM VILLAGE TREES/SHRUBS 05052016 05/05/2016 204.00 
1,269.50   *

          Total 100-55-5523-343 1,269.50 

100-55-5523-650 GENERAL FUND - NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES - HORTICULTURIST - TREE REMOVALS
23353 WHITNEY TREE SERVICE LLC STUMP GRINDING 8568 04/22/2016 2,634.50 

          Total NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES 8,054.42 

          Total 100-55-5523-650 2,634.50 

100-56-5640-210 GENERAL FUND - CONSERVATION & DEVELOPMENT - 100-56-5640 - PROF CONSULTANT:PLAN REVIEW
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING IN2016 MISCELLANEOUS 16585 05/05/2016 116.25 
22360 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC GENERAL PLANNING SERVICES 4072016 04/07/2016 1,790.00 

1,906.25   *

          Total CONSERVATION & DEVELOPMENT 1,906.25 

          Total 100-56-5640-210 1,906.25 

          Total GENERAL FUND 67,185.39 

200-51-5160-220 SEWER DIVISION FUND - CLERK - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3336 LAKE MENDOTA DRIVE 40362758 05/09/2016 111.32 

          Total CLERK 111.32 

          Total 200-51-5160-220 111.32 

200-53-5361-223 SEWER DIVISION FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - GENERAL OPERATIONS - SEWER TREATMENT EXPENSE
13046 MADISON METRO SEWERAGE DIST 1ST QUARTER SEWER SERVICE 12464 04/14/2016 38,166.77 

          Total 200-53-5361-223 38,166.77 

200-53-5361-340 SEWER DIVISION FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - GENERAL OPERATIONS - OPERATING SUPPLIES EXPENSE
4215 DELUXE DISTRIBUTORS BIO DEGREASER SEWER 4536 04/24/2016 720.00 
4215 DELUXE DISTRIBUTORS SHIPPING 4536 04/24/2016 79.06 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     6 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

799.06  *

          Total PUBLIC WORKS 38,965.83 

          Total 200-53-5361-340 799.06 

          Total SEWER DIVISION FUND 39,077.15 

210-46-4670-000 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES - 210-46-4670 - MEMBERSHIP FEES
1000826 BURGESS, CURTIS REFUND POOL MEMBERSHIP 4252016 04/25/2016 482.00 

          Total 210-46-4670-000 482.00 

210-46-4670-100 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES - 210-46-4670 - SWIM/DIVE/BALLET TEAM REG 
1000825 KNISELY, BARB REFUND WATER BALLET FEE 04292016 04/29/2016 100.00 
1000827 BRAUN, SARA REFUND SWIM TEAM FEES (201 4272016 04/27/2016 110.00 

210.00  *

          Total 210-46-4670-100 210.00 

210-51-5160-220 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 901 SWARTHMORE POOL 40362758 05/09/2016 950.24 
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 901 SWARTHMORE - CONCESSI 40362758 05/09/2016 98.91 

1,049.15  *

          Total 210-51-5160-220 1,049.15 

210-51-5160-350 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - LEGAL - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: REPAIR/MAINT EXP.
13384 MIDWEST POOL SUPPLY COMPANY CHEMICAL VALVES 61393 04/29/2016 38.39 
23594 WISCONSIN VALVE SERVICE 2 VALVE TESTING POOL 465067 04/27/2016 270.00 

1000727 PROAXIS LLC POWER WASH DECK AT POOL 16056-1 04/11/2016 885.00 
1000741 HOLTON BROTHERS INC DECK/CAULK REPAIRS 2003 05/06/2016 2,914.00 
1000818 STOPPLEWORTH PLUMBING LTD. DRINKING FOUNTAIN REPAIR & 29503 05/13/2016 2,173.88 
1000823 ELECTRIC CONSTRUCTION INC ELECTRIC WORK FOR WOMENS 4262016 04/26/2016 1,805.00 

8,086.27   *

          Total LEGAL 9,135.42 

          Total 210-51-5160-350 8,086.27 

210-55-5542-339 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL: CHEMICALS
4215 DELUXE DISTRIBUTORS ALGAECIDE FOR POOL 4536 04/24/2016 694.75 
4215 DELUXE DISTRIBUTORS SHIPPING 4536 04/24/2016 79.06 

13384 MIDWEST POOL SUPPLY COMPANY ACID, cHLORINE, SEQUA SOL 61392 04/27/2016 1,053.87 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     7 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

1,827.68  *

          Total 210-55-5542-339 1,827.68 

210-55-5542-340 POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL OPERATIONS - POOL: OPERATING SUPLY & EXP.
2026 BADGER HERALD EMPLOYMENT ADVERTISING 162 04/01/2016 120.00 
2026 BADGER HERALD EMPLOYMENT ADVERTISING 4014 04/01/2016 30.00 

16034 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC CPR POCKET MASKS 82132132 04/28/2016 14.78 
16034 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC NITRILE GLOVES 82132132 04/28/2016 27.58 
16034 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC WET PRUF TAPE 82132132 04/28/2016 25.49 
16034 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC COLD PACKS 82132132 04/28/2016 79.58 
16034 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC RESTRAIN STRAPS 82132132 04/28/2016 38.98 

1000258 REGENT NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOC REGENT NEWSLETTER AD 5102016 05/10/2016 55.00 
391.41   *

          Total POOL OPERATIONS 2,219.09 

          Total 210-55-5542-340 391.41 

          Total POOL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 12,046.51 

220-51-5160-220 WATERFRONT:SPECIAL REV FUND - CLERK - BUILDINGS & PLANT - BLDG/PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3400 LMD/4898 LMD 40362758 05/09/2016 73.83 

          Total CLERK 73.83 

          Total 220-51-5160-220 73.83 

          Total WATERFRONT:SPECIAL REV FUND 73.83 

400-53-5327-810 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - 400-53-5327 - COLD STORAGE BUILDING
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING INCOLD STORAGE BUILDING 16583 05/05/2016 1,063.25 

          Total 400-53-5327-810 1,063.25 

400-53-5344-865 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - 400-53-5344 - 2012 ROADS PROGRAM
1000587 NORTHERN ESCROW INC. 2013 STREET & UTILITIES: COLU 10-FINAL 05/11/2016 5,544.80 

          Total 400-53-5344-865 5,544.80 

400-53-5344-869 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MUNICIPAL GARAGE - 400-53-5344 - 2016 ROADS:RESURFACE REMAINING
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING IN2016 STREET IMPROVEMENTS 16584 05/05/2016 511.69 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     8 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total MUNICIPAL GARAGE 7,119.74 

          Total 400-53-5344-869 511.69 

          Total CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 7,119.74 

450-51-5141-120 450 - 450-51 - 450-51-5141 - PLANNING, LEGAL & ADMINISTRATN
19846 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC MARSHALL COURT TRAFFIC STU 0119373 04/12/2016 1,909.44 
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING INU. AVE. & UBD INTERSECTION 16581 05/05/2016 1,536.35 
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING INARBOR CROSSING II DEVELOPM 16582 05/05/2016 105.00 
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING INRONALD MCDONALD HOUSE RE 16586 05/05/2016 176.25 
22040 VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES INC ARBOR CROSSING ANALYSIS 201602055 02/20/2016 4,494.75 
22040 VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES INC ARBOR CROSSING ANALYSIS 201604053 04/20/2016 4,899.25 
22360 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC TID 6 CREATION 4072016 04/07/2016 2,520.63 
22360 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC TID 3 AMENDMENT 4072016 04/07/2016 1,566.87 

17,208.54   *

          Total 450-51 17,208.54 

          Total 450-51-5141-120 17,208.54 

          Total 450 17,208.54 

470-51-5141-120 470 - 470-51 - 470-51-5141 - PLANNING LEGAL & ADMIN-PYARE
13046 MADISON METRO SEWERAGE DIST SEWER PLAN REVIEW-PYARE 12498 04/29/2016 1,300.00 
20670 TOWN & COUNTRY ENGINEERING INPYARE SQUARE REDEVELOPME 16580 05/05/2016 272.50 
22360 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC TID 5 CREATION 4072016 04/07/2016 1,308.50 

2,881.00   *

          Total 470-51 2,881.00 

          Total 470-51-5141-120 2,881.00 

          Total 470 2,881.00 

500-53-5364-340 STORM WATER UTILITY FUND - 500-53 - 500-53-5364 - OPERATING SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE
7625 GOOD OAK LLC HERBICIDE TREATMENT IN RAIN 16-129 05/09/2016 555.00 

          Total 500-53 555.00 



PD = Fully Paid Invoice     PR = Partially Paid Invoice  

 
VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    Payment Approval Report by GL No - Dept Heads Page:     9 

Paid / Unpaid Invoices  05/16/2016 - 05/16/2016 May 13, 2016  04:02pm 
 

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice No Inv Date Amount

          Total 500-53-5364-340 555.00 

          Total STORM WATER UTILITY FUND 555.00 

600-53-0610-601 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - OPERATIONS - PURCHASED WATER
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF 810 SW BLVD-FLAT RATE 9297427 04/21/2016 447.60 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT-LAKE MENDOTA DRIVE 9297428 04/20/2016 94.28 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT-SW BLVD AT RAILROAD TRA 9297429 04/20/2016 94.28 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT-UNIV.BAY DR.-TRACKS 9297430 04/20/2016 1.35 
13085 MADISON TREASURER, CITY OF PIT-MAPLE TER.-LOCUST 9297431 04/20/2016 94.28 

731.79  *

          Total 600-53-0610-601 731.79 

600-53-0620-220 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - 600-53-0620 - POWER FOR PUMPING
13040 MADISON GAS & ELECTRIC 3302 BLACKH, 3561 TALLY HO 40362758 05/09/2016 1,264.07 

          Total 600-53-0620-220 1,264.07 

600-53-0682-210 WATER DEPARTMENT FUND - WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS - MISC GENERAL EXPENSES - OUTSIDE SERVICES
16850 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION WATER RATE STUDY 1509-I-05450 10/13/2015 497.40 
16850 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION WATER RATE STUDY 1604-I-05450 05/11/2016 1,186.42 
16850 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION DIRECT ASSESSMENT RA16-I-05450 09/29/2015 389.63 

2,073.45  *

          Total WATER: WAGES AND BENEFITS 4,069.31 

          Total 600-53-0682-210 2,073.45 

          Total WATER DEPARTMENT FUND 4,069.31 

          Grand Total: 150,216.47 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 1 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET
FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

TAXES

100-41-4111-000 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES .00 .00 2,549,307.00 2,549,307.00 ( ) .00 
100-41-4131-000 PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAX .00 .00 58,000.00 58,000.00 ( ) .00 
100-41-4181-000 INTEREST & PENALTIES ON TAXES .00 214.23 500.00 285.77 ( ) 42.85 

TOTAL TAXES .00 214.23 2,607,807.00 2,607,592.77 ( ) .01 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE

100-43-4330-000 FED/STATE DISASTER RELIEF .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-43-4341-000 STATE SHARED REVENUE .00 .00 20,889.00 20,889.00 ( ) .00 
100-43-4342-000 FIRE INSURANCE PREMIUM-2% DUES .00 .00 18,000.00 18,000.00 ( ) .00 
100-43-4351-000 STATE AID: EXEMPT COMPUTERS .00 .00 46,740.00 46,740.00 ( ) .00 
100-43-4352-100 LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING AIDS .00 .00 2,170.00 2,170.00 ( ) .00 
100-43-4352-105 PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT AIDS .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 ( ) .00 
100-43-4352-110 GRANTS TO POLICE DEPARTMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-43-4353-000 STATE AID: HIGHWAY .00 71,771.98 287,087.00 215,315.02 ( ) 25.00 
100-43-4353-100 LOCAL ROADS GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-43-4353-300 STATE FEMA GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-43-4358-000 FORESTRY GRANTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-43-4360-000 DANE CTY GRANT: LAND CONS DEPT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE .00 71,771.98 376,086.00 304,314.02 ( ) 19.08 

LICENSES & PERMITS

100-44-4411-000 LICENSES: LIQUOR/MALT BEVERAGE .00 .00 5,500.00 5,500.00 ( ) .00 
100-44-4412-000 LICENSES: OTHER BUS/OCCUPATION .00 90.00 2,850.00 2,760.00 ( ) 3.16 
100-44-4421-000 LICENSES: BICYCLE .00 .00 75.00 75.00 ( ) .00 
100-44-4422-000 LICENSES: DOG & CAT 565.00 2,571.00 3,800.00 1,229.00 ( ) 67.66 
100-44-4423-000 LICENSES: MISC 20.00 220.00 300.00 80.00 ( ) 73.33 
100-44-4431-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: BUILDINGS 482.16 3,930.81 16,000.00 12,069.19 ( ) 24.57 
100-44-4432-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: HVAC 90.00 5,401.82 5,000.00 401.82 108.04 
100-44-4433-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: ELECTRICL 476.00 2,328.50 6,000.00 3,671.50 ( ) 38.81 
100-44-4434-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: PLUMBING 80.00 2,590.00 4,000.00 1,410.00 ( ) 64.75 
100-44-4435-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: SIGNS .00 .00 100.00 100.00 ( ) .00 
100-44-4436-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES:SPRNK/FIRE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-44-4439-000 PERMIT/INSPCTN FEES: MISC. 125.00 125.00 300.00 175.00 ( ) 41.67 
100-44-4441-000 ZONING FEES 350.00 1,050.00 3,600.00 2,550.00 ( ) 29.17 
100-44-4491-000 CABLE TV FRANCHISE FEES .00 7,667.18 29,000.00 21,332.82 ( ) 26.44 
100-44-4492-000 % SURCHARGE FOR RECREATION .00 .00 11,841.00 11,841.00 ( ) .00 

TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 2,188.16 25,974.31 88,366.00 62,391.69 ( ) 29.39 

FINES, FORFEITS, & PENALTIES

100-45-4511-000 COURT FINES 6,690.80 18,420.20 30,000.00 11,579.80 ( ) 61.40 
100-45-4513-000 PARKING VIOLATIONS 1,275.00 12,559.00 42,000.00 29,441.00 ( ) 29.90 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 2 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET
FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

100-45-4514-000 POLICE DONATIONS/MISC REVENUES .00 10.00 9,000.00 8,990.00 ( ) .11 

TOTAL FINES, FORFEITS, & PENALTIES 7,965.80 30,989.20 81,000.00 50,010.80 ( ) 38.26 

PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES

100-46-4611-000 CLERK: MATERIAL & SUPPLY SALES .00 .00 100.00 100.00 ( ) .00 
100-46-4612-000 CLERK: EMPLOYEE SUNSHINE FUND .00 .00 500.00 500.00 ( ) .00 
100-46-4613-000 CLERK: PARKING PERMITS 40.00 220.00 700.00 480.00 ( ) 31.43 
100-46-4621-000 LAW ENFORCEMENT FEES 16.00 102.26 400.00 297.74 ( ) 25.57 
100-46-4642-000 WIS MUNICIPAL RECYCLING GRANT .00 .00 12,043.00 12,043.00 ( ) .00 
100-46-4642-100 RECYCLING PROCEEDS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-46-4645-000 DISPOSAL REPAIR FEES .00 .00 800.00 800.00 ( ) .00 
100-46-4670-000 BOOK PUBLISHING REVENUES .00 120.00 330.00 210.00 ( ) 36.36 
100-46-4670-100 RESALE BOOK PUBLISHING REVENUE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-46-4671-000 BOOK SHIPPING INCOME .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-46-4672-000 CONTRIBUTIONS:PARKS & FORESTRY .00 100.00 1,000.00 900.00 ( ) 10.00 
100-46-4672-100 GARDEN PLOT REVENUES 120.00 1,650.00 1,920.00 270.00 ( ) 85.94 
100-46-4672-110 CONTRIBUTIONS: GARDEN CLUB .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 ( ) .00 
100-46-4673-100 RECREATION: FOUR CORNERS 1,930.00 11,860.00 15,162.00 3,302.00 ( ) 78.22 
100-46-4673-200 RECREATION: LAND REC 1,590.00 10,640.00 15,606.00 4,966.00 ( ) 68.18 
100-46-4673-210 RECREATION: LAND REC GRANT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-46-4673-300 RECREATION: TENNIS 6,060.00 10,882.50 32,167.00 21,284.50 ( ) 33.83 
100-46-4673-400 RECREATION: BASEBALL .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-46-4673-500 RECREATION: BASKETBALL 650.00 900.00 1,535.00 635.00 ( ) 58.63 
100-46-4673-600 RECREATION: GOLF 1,937.75 1,937.75 5,229.00 3,291.25 ( ) 37.06 
100-46-4673-700 RECREATION: KAYAK/CANOE .00 .00 459.00 459.00 ( ) .00 
100-46-4673-800 RECREATION: INDOOR SOCCER .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-46-4673-900 RECREATION: OUTDOOR SOCCER .00 .00 8,780.00 8,780.00 ( ) .00 
100-46-4674-100 COMMUNITY CENTER RENTALS 2,194.36 2,516.36 4,000.00 1,483.64 ( ) 62.91 
100-46-4674-210 JULY 4TH FAMILY PICNIC .00 .00 1,100.00 1,100.00 ( ) .00 
100-46-4674-220 JULY 4TH FIREWORKS .00 .00 8,100.00 8,100.00 ( ) .00 

TOTAL PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES 14,538.11 40,928.87 112,431.00 71,502.13 ( ) 36.40 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERV CHGS

100-47-4741-000 WATER DEPT: REIMB FOR SERVICES .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 ( ) .00 
100-47-4742-000 SEWER DIV: REIMB FOR SERVICES .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 ( ) .00 
100-47-4743-000 WATERFRONT: REIMB FOR SERVICES .00 .00 16,700.00 16,700.00 ( ) .00 
100-47-4744-000 STORMWATER:REIMB FOR SERVICES .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 ( ) .00 

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERV CHGS .00 .00 43,700.00 43,700.00 ( ) .00 

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

100-48-4810-000 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 ( ) .00 
100-48-4810-100 BUILD AMERICA BOND SUBSIDY .00 .00 9,153.00 9,153.00 ( ) .00 
100-48-4812-000 CAPITAL PROJECT BOND INTEREST .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-48-4815-000 INTEREST ON WATER LOAN .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 3 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET
FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

100-48-4821-000 RENT: DUE FROM POOL .00 .00 37,800.00 37,800.00 ( ) .00 
100-48-4822-000 RENT: BLACKHAWK C.C. 8,333.00 41,669.00 101,500.00 59,831.00 ( ) 41.05 
100-48-4823-000 BCC INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-48-4825-000 RENT: PARKING SPACES .00 1,137.45 .00 1,137.45 .00 
100-48-4830-000 MISCELLANEOUS SALES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-48-4831-000 POLICE/ FIRE SALES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 ( ) .00 
100-48-4833-000 VILLAGE TREE SALES .00 153.70 3,000.00 2,846.30 ( ) 5.12 
100-48-4836-000 DPW VEHICLE SALES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-48-4838-000 DANE CTY CALENDARS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 ( ) .00 
100-48-4840-000 INSURANCE DIVIDENDS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-48-4850-000 INSURANCE CLAIMS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-48-4855-000 SHWD LEAGUE/FOUNDATN RECEIPTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-48-4895-000 TIF REFUND .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 8,333.00 42,960.15 167,453.00 124,492.85 ( ) 25.66 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

100-49-4941-000 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 307.50 298,638.87 13,500.00 285,138.87 2,212.14 
100-49-4944-000 FUND BALANCE APPLIED .00 .00 88,416.00 88,416.00 ( ) .00 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 307.50 298,638.87 101,916.00 196,722.87 293.02 

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 33,332.57 511,477.61 3,578,759.00 3,067,281.39 ( ) 14.29 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 4 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

VILLAGE BOARD

100-51-5111-310 VILLAGE BOARD: SUP & EXPENSE .00 2,538.14 750.00 1,788.14 ( ) 338.42 
100-51-5111-720 VILLAGE BOARD: DONATIONS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 2,538.14 750.00 1,788.14 ( ) 338.42 

COMMITTEES

100-51-5112-310 COMMITTEES: SUP & EXPENSE .00 187.42 500.00 312.58 37.48 

TOTAL COMMITTEES .00 187.42 500.00 312.58 37.48 

JUDICIAL

100-51-5120-110 JUDICIAL: SALARY & ALLOWANCES 228.00 1,066.40 2,965.00 1,898.60 35.97 
100-51-5120-120 JUDICIAL: COURT CLERK WAGES 1,614.83 6,570.30 21,266.00 14,695.70 30.90 
100-51-5120-150 JUDICIAL: BENEFITS 486.62 1,945.23 6,158.00 4,212.77 31.59 
100-51-5120-310 JUDICIAL: OFFC. SUP & EXPENSE 42.55 1,130.28 1,500.00 369.72 75.35 
100-51-5120-321 JUDICIAL: DUES .00 140.00 100.00 40.00 ( ) 140.00 
100-51-5120-322 JUDICIAL: SEMINARS & TRAINING 294.16 994.16 1,465.00 470.84 67.86 

TOTAL JUDICIAL 2,666.16 11,846.37 33,454.00 21,607.63 35.41 

LEGAL

100-51-5130-210 LEGAL: GEN. ADVICE & COUNSEL .00 8,528.21 13,000.00 4,471.79 65.60 
100-51-5130-211 LEGAL: ORDINANCE PROSECUTIONS .00 7,945.76 29,000.00 21,054.24 27.40 

TOTAL LEGAL .00 16,473.97 42,000.00 25,526.03 39.22 

ADMINISTRATION

100-51-5141-120 ADMIN: WAGES 6,488.94 24,555.02 86,425.00 61,869.98 28.41 
100-51-5141-150 ADMIN: BENEFITS 1,715.39 6,503.94 21,957.00 15,453.06 29.62 
100-51-5141-320 ADMIN: DUES & SEMINARS .00 548.00 1,600.00 1,052.00 34.25 
100-51-5141-340 ADMIN: MONTHLY BULLETIN .00 .00 225.00 225.00 .00 
100-51-5141-380 ADMIN: STAFF SUNSHINE FUND .00 193.38 100.00 93.38 ( ) 193.38 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 8,204.33 31,800.34 110,307.00 78,506.66 28.83 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 5 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

CLERK

100-51-5142-120 CLERK: WAGES 6,335.96 23,974.23 84,839.00 60,864.77 28.26 
100-51-5142-130 EXTRA OFFICE HELP 1,634.64 5,611.46 17,347.00 11,735.54 32.35 
100-51-5142-150 CLERK: BENEFITS 1,653.13 6,201.60 21,382.00 15,180.40 29.00 
100-51-5142-310 CLERK: SUP & EXPENSES 22.92 868.11 3,900.00 3,031.89 22.26 
100-51-5142-322 CLERK: TRAINING/SEMINARS .00 175.49 800.00 624.51 21.94 
100-51-5142-340 CLERK: POSTAL EXPENSES 380.06 ( ) 768.84 4,500.00 3,731.16 17.09 
100-51-5142-500 CLERK: DANE CTY CALENDARS .00 .00 920.00 920.00 .00 
100-51-5142-700 CLERK: LICENSE COSTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL CLERK 9,266.59 37,599.73 133,688.00 96,088.27 28.12 

PERSONNEL

100-51-5143-158 PERSONNEL: UNEMPLOYMENT COMP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-51-5143-160 PERSONNEL: WORKMAN'S COMP INS .00 20,671.00 40,000.00 19,329.00 51.68 
100-51-5143-190 PERSONNEL: PROVIDED FOR EVALS .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .00 
100-51-5143-200 PERSONNEL: RECRUITMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-51-5143-210 PERSONNEL: MEDICAL EVALUATIONS .00 706.40 500.00 206.40 ( ) 141.28 
100-51-5143-300 PERSONNEL: RETIREES INS PREM 2,161.90 9,217.42 26,856.00 17,638.58 34.32 

TOTAL PERSONNEL 2,161.90 30,594.82 73,356.00 42,761.18 41.71 

ELECTIONS

100-51-5144-140 ELECTIONS: PER DIEM WAGES 1,197.27 2,111.46 2,500.00 388.54 84.46 
100-51-5144-340 ELECTIONS: OPERATING SUPPLIES 3.67 428.20 1,400.00 971.80 30.59 

TOTAL ELECTIONS 1,200.94 2,539.66 3,900.00 1,360.34 65.12 

DATA PROCESSING

100-51-5145-210 D.P.: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES .00 1,386.00 17,286.00 15,900.00 8.02 
100-51-5145-340 D.P.: OPERATIONS EXPENSE .00 652.35 2,600.00 1,947.65 25.09 
100-51-5145-350 WEBSITE COSTS .00 .00 468.00 468.00 .00 

TOTAL DATA PROCESSING .00 2,038.35 20,354.00 18,315.65 10.01 

FINANCE

100-51-5151-210 FINANCE: AUDIT SERVICES .00 22,493.00 25,917.00 3,424.00 86.79 
100-51-5151-290 LIFE QUEST FEES/OTHER PAYMENTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-51-5151-300 BOND ISSUE EXPENSES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL FINANCE .00 22,493.00 25,917.00 3,424.00 86.79 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 6 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

TREASURY

100-51-5152-340 TREASURY: OPERATIONS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-51-5152-390 TREASURY: WRITE-OFF EXPENSE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL TREASURY .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

ASSESSOR

100-51-5153-210 ASSESSOR: CONTRACTUAL EXPENSE .00 610.00 6,300.00 5,690.00 9.68 

TOTAL ASSESSOR .00 610.00 6,300.00 5,690.00 9.68 

RISK & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

100-51-5154-511 LIABILITY INS (LEAGUE) 170.00 25,166.00 59,000.00 33,834.00 42.65 
100-51-5154-512 PROPERTY INS (LGPIF) .00 13,083.00 16,000.00 2,917.00 81.77 

TOTAL RISK & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 170.00 38,249.00 75,000.00 36,751.00 51.00 

BUILDINGS & PLANT

100-51-5160-220 BLDGS & PLANT: GAS & ELECTRIC 3,415.10 10,948.48 40,250.00 29,301.52 27.20 
100-51-5160-221 BLDGS & PLANT: WATER 1,182.46 1,182.46 5,000.00 3,817.54 23.65 
100-51-5160-222 BLDGS & PLANT: TELEPHONE 6.48 1,433.21 5,000.00 3,566.79 28.66 
100-51-5160-223 BLDGS & PLANT:STORMWATER  CHRG 2,134.00 2,134.00 5,500.00 3,366.00 38.80 
100-51-5160-240 BLDGS & PLANT: CONTRACTUAL .00 1,453.96 6,600.00 5,146.04 22.03 
100-51-5160-530 BLDGS & PLANT: RENTAL EXPENSE 2,140.52 10,522.60 26,200.00 15,677.40 40.16 

TOTAL BUILDINGS & PLANT 8,878.56 27,674.71 88,550.00 60,875.29 31.25 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 7 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

POLICE DEPARTMENT

100-52-5210-110 POLICE: SALARIES & ALLOWANCES 6,632.01 25,143.59 88,448.00 63,304.41 28.43 
100-52-5210-120 POLICE: CLERICAL WAGES 2,384.31 17,543.13 68,304.00 50,760.87 25.68 
100-52-5210-121 POLICE: OFFICER WAGE & HOLIDAY 20,327.06 76,610.06 296,436.00 219,825.94 25.84 
100-52-5210-122 POLICE: OVERTIME WAGES 1,142.21 4,008.04 9,000.00 4,991.96 44.53 
100-52-5210-124 POLICE: PART-TIME DUTY WAGES 9,608.39 23,788.92 40,500.00 16,711.08 58.74 
100-52-5210-125 POLICE: DIFFERENTIAL 75.49 316.09 2,000.00 1,683.91 15.80 
100-52-5210-128 POLICE: COM SERVICE OFFICERS .00 .00 4,250.00 4,250.00 .00 
100-52-5210-129 POLICE: CROSSING GUARD WAG 385.60 2,284.68 5,500.00 3,215.32 41.54 
100-52-5210-130 POLICE: EMPLOYMENT BONUS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-52-5210-150 POLICE: BENEFITS 14,324.49 55,833.94 188,027.00 132,193.06 29.69 
100-52-5210-170 POLICE: EDUCATION REIMB .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .00 
100-52-5210-210 POLICE: CONTRACTUAL SERVICES .00 1,726.00 10,500.00 8,774.00 16.44 
100-52-5210-310 POLICE: OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXP 220.31 447.03 2,900.00 2,452.97 15.41 
100-52-5210-321 POLICE: DUES & SEMINARS .00 757.00 1,500.00 743.00 50.47 
100-52-5210-322 POLICE: TRAINING EXPENSES .00 132.04 8,000.00 7,867.96 1.65 
100-52-5210-340 POLICE: OPERATING EXPENSE 20.00 2,084.24 14,400.00 12,315.76 14.47 
100-52-5210-341 POLICE: UNIFORM EXPENSE .00 426.46 4,500.00 4,073.54 9.48 
100-52-5210-345 POLICE: PROMOTION .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-52-5210-350 POLICE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .00 
100-52-5210-370 POLICE: FUEL & OIL 477.71 1,394.36 9,000.00 7,605.64 15.49 
100-52-5210-380 POLICE: DRUG PREVENTION .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .00 
100-52-5210-390 POLICE: INSURANCE COSTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 55,597.58 212,495.58 758,965.00 546,469.42 28.00 

FIRE DEPARTMENT

100-52-5220-210 FIRE: CONTRACTUAL EXPENSE 247,205.95 247,205.95 494,411.00 247,205.05 50.00 
100-52-5220-215 FIRE: 2% DUES TO MAD FIRE DEPT .00 .00 18,000.00 18,000.00 .00 
100-52-5220-590 FIRE: HYDRANT RENTAL .00 .00 118,281.00 118,281.00 .00 

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT 247,205.95 247,205.95 630,692.00 383,486.05 39.20 

INSPECTIONS

100-52-5240-150 INSPECTIONS: BENEFITS 201.25 689.58 2,180.00 1,490.42 31.63 
100-52-5240-211 INSPECTIONS: BUILDINGS 1,540.31 5,386.92 16,000.00 10,613.08 33.67 
100-52-5240-212 INSPECTIONS: HVAC 457.93 1,490.35 5,000.00 3,509.65 29.81 
100-52-5240-213 INSPECTIONS: ELECTRICAL 582.82 1,548.64 5,000.00 3,451.36 30.97 
100-52-5240-214 INSPECTIONS: PLUMBING 124.89 874.23 2,500.00 1,625.77 34.97 
100-52-5240-340 INSPECTIONS: OPERATIONS .00 194.00 100.00 94.00 ( ) 194.00 

TOTAL INSPECTIONS 2,907.20 10,183.72 30,780.00 20,596.28 33.09 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 8 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION

100-52-5260-290 DANE COUNTY RADIO CONTRACT .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .00 

TOTAL EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .00 

PUBLIC WORKS

100-53-5300-121 AIDABLE WORK: LABOR 4,628.87 21,539.97 73,550.00 52,010.03 29.29 
100-53-5300-150 AIDABLE WORK: BENEFITS 1,165.45 4,415.53 12,462.00 8,046.47 35.43 
100-53-5300-340 AIDABLE WORK: OPERATING EXP. 159.92 12,341.41 20,000.00 7,658.59 61.71 
100-53-5300-450 SCHOOL SAFE ZONE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-53-5300-600 AIDABLE: INSURANCE REPAIRS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 5,954.24 38,296.91 106,012.00 67,715.09 36.13 

MUNICIPAL GARAGE

100-53-5320-350 GARAGE: VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT 43.80 10,863.59 18,000.00 7,136.41 60.35 
100-53-5320-370 GARAGE: FUEL & OIL 494.05 1,544.98 13,750.00 12,205.02 11.24 

TOTAL MUNICIPAL GARAGE 537.85 12,408.57 31,750.00 19,341.43 39.08 

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

100-53-5330-210 STR MAINT/REPAIR: ENGINEERING .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-53-5330-230 STR MAINT/REPAIR: ANNUAL CNTCT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00 

TOTAL STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00 

STREET LIGHTING

100-53-5342-220 STREET LIGHTING: POWER 1,542.29 4,679.34 18,000.00 13,320.66 26.00 
100-53-5342-340 STREET LIGHTING: CONTRACTUAL .00 15,325.32 9,000.00 6,325.32 ( ) 170.28 

TOTAL STREET LIGHTING 1,542.29 20,004.66 27,000.00 6,995.34 74.09 

STORM SEWERS

100-53-5344-350 STORM SEWERS: DISCHARGE PERMIT .00 11.60 .00 11.60 ( ) .00 

TOTAL STORM SEWERS .00 11.60 .00 11.60 ( ) .00 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 9 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

VILLAGE BOARD

100-53-5352-300 BUS SERVICE .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .00 

REFUSE COLLECTION

100-53-5362-290 REFUSE COLL: CONTRACTUAL SERVC .00 23,976.62 96,000.00 72,023.38 24.98 

TOTAL REFUSE COLLECTION .00 23,976.62 96,000.00 72,023.38 24.98 

METRO LANDFILL DISTRICT

100-53-5363-290 METRO LANDFILL EXPENSE .00 4,080.00 8,160.00 4,080.00 50.00 

TOTAL METRO LANDFILL DISTRICT .00 4,080.00 8,160.00 4,080.00 50.00 

LEAF COLLECTION

100-53-5365-121 RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:LABOR 3,518.59 11,117.88 36,563.00 25,445.12 30.41 
100-53-5365-150 RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:BENEFITS 783.50 2,013.06 6,195.00 4,181.94 32.49 
100-53-5365-340 RECYCLING/YARDWASTE: SUP EXP .00 172.47 4,120.00 3,947.53 4.19 
100-53-5365-370 RECYCLING/YARDWASTE:FUEL & OIL 522.03 522.03 3,900.00 3,377.97 13.39 

TOTAL LEAF COLLECTION 4,824.12 13,825.44 50,778.00 36,952.56 27.23 

VILLAGE HALL

100-54-5400-130 VILLAGE HALL: CLEANING 451.68 1,754.01 11,949.00 10,194.99 14.68 
100-54-5400-150 VILLAGE HALL: BENEFITS 64.82 251.70 2,025.00 1,773.30 12.43 

TOTAL VILLAGE HALL 516.50 2,005.71 13,974.00 11,968.29 14.35 

NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES

100-55-5500-121 NON-AIDABLE WORK: LABOR 6,842.57 33,006.63 99,518.00 66,511.37 33.17 
100-55-5500-150 NON-AIDABLE WORK: BENEFITS 1,741.47 6,181.35 16,863.00 10,681.65 36.66 
100-55-5500-340 NON-AIDABLE: OPERATING EXPENSE 788.96 8,904.50 25,000.00 16,095.50 35.62 
100-55-5500-600 NON-AIDABLE: INSURANCE COSTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-55-5500-700 COMMUNITY GARDENS 450.00 450.00 .00 450.00 ( ) .00 

TOTAL NON-AIDABLE EXPENSES 9,823.00 48,542.48 141,381.00 92,838.52 34.33 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 10 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

COMMUNITY CENTER

100-55-5514-121 COMMUNITY CTR: WAGES .00 37.64 3,944.00 3,906.36 .95 
100-55-5514-150 COMMUNITY CTR: WAGE BENEFITS .00 5.40 668.00 662.60 .81 
100-55-5514-220 COMMUNITY CTR: GAS & ELECTRIC 1,038.47 3,105.42 7,600.00 4,494.58 40.86 

TOTAL COMMUNITY CENTER 1,038.47 3,148.46 12,212.00 9,063.54 25.78 

PARKS

100-55-5520-121 FORESTER:  WAGES 4,251.20 16,112.81 60,920.00 44,807.19 26.45 
100-55-5520-122 GRANT FUNDED HORT WAGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-55-5520-125 HORT ASSISTANT WAGES .00 .00 16,000.00 16,000.00 .00 
100-55-5520-150 FORESTER: WAGE BENEFITS 1,197.20 4,543.41 17,131.00 12,587.59 26.52 
100-55-5520-320 PARKS:PROJECTS .00 1,392.95 6,300.00 4,907.05 22.11 
100-55-5520-340 PARKS:OPERATING EXPENSE 39.94 987.84 4,350.00 3,362.16 22.71 
100-55-5520-342 VILLAGE TREE SALES COSTS .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 
100-55-5520-350 MCKENNA PARK .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-55-5520-370 FORESTER: FUEL & OIL .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .00 

TOTAL PARKS 5,488.34 23,037.01 108,501.00 85,463.99 21.23 

HORTICULTURIST

100-55-5523-343 HORTICULTURE: REFORESTATION .00 .00 8,000.00 8,000.00 .00 
100-55-5523-350 HORTICULTURE:PLANTINGS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-55-5523-550 FORESTRY GRANTS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-55-5523-600 TREE MAINTENANCE 1,100.00 7,180.00 30,000.00 22,820.00 23.93 
100-55-5523-650 TREE REMOVALS 1,500.00 8,480.00 10,000.00 1,520.00 84.80 

TOTAL HORTICULTURIST 2,600.00 15,660.00 48,000.00 32,340.00 32.62 

FOUR CORNERS PROGRAM

100-55-5531-121 FOUR CORNERS: WAGES .00 .00 11,800.00 11,800.00 .00 
100-55-5531-150 FOUR-CORNERS: BENEFITS .00 .00 903.00 903.00 .00 
100-55-5531-340 FOUR CORNERS: OPERATING EXPNSE .00 2.43 2,531.00 2,528.57 .10 

TOTAL FOUR CORNERS PROGRAM .00 2.43 15,234.00 15,231.57 .02 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 11 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

LAND RECREATION PROGRAM

100-55-5532-121 LAND RECREATION: WAGES .00 .00 11,800.00 11,800.00 .00 
100-55-5532-150 LAND RECREATION: BENEFITS .00 .00 903.00 903.00 .00 
100-55-5532-340 LAND RECREATION: OPERATING EXP .00 8.73 4,815.00 4,806.27 .18 

TOTAL LAND RECREATION PROGRAM .00 8.73 17,518.00 17,509.27 .05 

TENNIS PROGRAM

100-55-5533-121 TENNIS: WAGES .00 .00 18,000.00 18,000.00 .00 
100-55-5533-150 TENNIS: BENEFITS .00 .00 1,377.00 1,377.00 .00 
100-55-5533-340 TENNIS: OPERATING EXPENSES .00 3.88 9,647.00 9,643.12 .04 

TOTAL TENNIS PROGRAM .00 3.88 29,024.00 29,020.12 .01 

BASEBALL PROGRAM

100-55-5534-140 BASEBALL: UMPIRE PER DIEM EXP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-55-5534-340 BASEBALL: OPERATING EXPENSES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL BASEBALL PROGRAM .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

BASKETBALL PROGRAM

100-55-5535-121 BASKETBALL: WAGES .00 .00 550.00 550.00 .00 
100-55-5535-150 BASKETBALL: BENEFITS .00 .00 42.00 42.00 .00 
100-55-5535-340 BASKETBALL: OPERATING EXPENSE .00 1.45 642.00 640.55 .23 

TOTAL BASKETBALL PROGRAM .00 1.45 1,234.00 1,232.55 .12 

MISC RECREATION PROGRAMS

100-55-5536-121 INDOOR SOCCER: WAGES .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-55-5536-150 INDOOR SOCCER: BENEFITS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-55-5536-340 INDOOR SOCCER: OPERATING EXPEN .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL MISC RECREATION PROGRAMS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 12 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

VILLAGE BOARD

100-55-5537-340 SPEC EVENTS: JULY 4TH EXPENSE .00 .00 1,400.00 1,400.00 .00 
100-55-5537-341 SPEC EVENTS: FIREWORKS EXPENSE .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .00 
100-55-5537-342 SPEC EVENTS: RECOGNITION NIGHT .00 .00 4,200.00 4,200.00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 14,600.00 14,600.00 .00 

VILLAGE BOARD

100-55-5538-340 OUTDOOR SOCCER: OPERATNG EXPEN .00 .00 7,242.00 7,242.00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 7,242.00 7,242.00 .00 

VILLAGE BOARD

100-55-5540-340 GOLF: OPERATING EXPENSES .00 .00 5,229.00 5,229.00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 5,229.00 5,229.00 .00 

VILLAGE BOARD

100-55-5550-390 KAYAK/CANOE RENTAL EXPENSES .00 .00 459.00 459.00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 459.00 459.00 .00 

VILLAGE BOARD

100-56-5630-150 PLANNER .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

VILLAGE BOARD

100-56-5640-210 PROF CONSULTANT:PLAN REVIEW .00 136.50 1,500.00 1,363.50 9.10 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 136.50 1,500.00 1,363.50 9.10 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 13 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

VILLAGE BOARD

100-57-5735-775 CAP OUTLAY: CREW MOWER UNIT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

CAPITAL OUTLAY: GEN'L GOV'T

100-57-5751-800 CAP OUTLAY: COMPUTERS 132.16 145.76 4,500.00 4,354.24 3.24 
100-57-5751-810 CAP OUTLAY: GEN ADM EQUIPMENT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5751-825 CAP OUTLAY: ADMIN DP SOFTWARE .00 4,278.00 1,500.00 2,778.00 ( ) 285.20 
100-57-5751-830 CAP OUTLAY:FD/EMS CAPITL EQUIP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5751-845 CAP OUTLAY:PAINT BURBANK RAIL .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5751-850 CAP OUTLAY:DPW CAPITAL EQUIPMT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY: GEN'L GOV'T 132.16 4,423.76 6,000.00 1,576.24 73.73 

CAPITAL OUTLAY: PUBLIC SAFETY

100-57-5752-811 CAP OUTLAY: PD COMMNCTNS EQPT .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .00 
100-57-5752-813 CAP OUTLAY: PD VEHICLE REPL .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5752-815 CAP OUTLAY: PD SAFETY EQPT .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .00 
100-57-5752-817 CAP OUTLAY: PD EQUIPMENT 435.56 ( ) 435.56 ( ) 19,500.00 19,935.56 2.23 ( )
100-57-5752-821 CAP OUTLAY: FD COMMNCTNS EQPT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5752-822 CAP OUTLAY: FD OPERATING EQUIP .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5752-825 CAP OUTLAY: FD SAFETY EQPT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5752-826 CAP OUTLAY: FD HOSE & APPLNCS .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5752-828 CAP OUTLAY: FD VEHICLE REPLACE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5752-831 CAP OUTLAY: EMS COMMNCTN EQPT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 
100-57-5752-832 CAP OUTLAY: EMS OPERATING EQPT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY: PUBLIC SAFETY 435.56 ( ) 435.56 ( ) 28,500.00 28,935.56 1.53 ( )

VILLAGE BOARD

100-59-5910-900 CONTINGENT ACCOUNT .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 

VILLAGE BOARD

100-59-5920-900 DUE TO DEBT SERVICE .00 .00 730,438.00 730,438.00 .00 

TOTAL VILLAGE BOARD .00 .00 730,438.00 730,438.00 .00 



FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  05/13/2016     01:41PM       PAGE: 14 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS    
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2016

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD BUDGET % OF
ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL AMOUNT VARIANCE BUDGET

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 370,280.62 903,669.41 3,578,759.00 2,675,089.59 25.25 

NET REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 336,948.05 ( ) 392,191.80 ( ) .00 5,742,370.98 ( ) .00 



Village of Shorewood Hills 
Board of Trustees Meeting  

Draft Minutes 
Monday, April 18, 2016  7:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  Village President Mark Sundquist called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
2. Roll Call  Members of the Board present were Mr. Sundquist and Trustees Fred Wade, Anne 

Readel, John Imes, Mark Lederer, Felice Borisy-Rudin and David Benforado. Also in attendance 
were Village Treasurer Sean Cote, Village Administrator Karl Frantz, Department of Public 
Works Chief John Mitmoen, Police Chief Dennis Pine, Emergency Services Coordinator David 
Sykes, Village Forester Corey George and Village Clerk Cokie Albrecht. Approximately ten 
visitors were in the audience. 

 
3. Statement of Public Notice  Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and 

noticed.  
 
4. Procedures Orientation  There was none this evening. 
 
5. Appearances and Communications  There were none this evening.  
   
6. Administer Oath of Office to newly elected officials  Recently reelected incumbent Trustees 

Mr. Lederer, Mr. Imes and Mr. Benforado read the oath of office and were welcomed to the 
Village Board for additional two-year terms. 

   
7.    Board Matters  

D. New Business Resolutions and Motions 
iv) Consider approval of conditional use permit for Shorewood Hills School addition  
Michael Hertting, Madison Metropolitan School District (MMSD) Chief of School Operations, 
and Architect Steven Kieckhafer of Plunkett Raysich Architects, LLP, described the proposed 
improvements to the Shorewood Hills School. The project, which was funded by the passage of a 
school referendum in 2015, will involve the installation of elevators in additions to be built on the 
south side of the west wing and the west side of the east wing of the school. The Plan 
Commission has reviewed the plans and recommended approval of the project. Mr. Benforado 
moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to approve MMSD’s conditional use permit application 
as stipulated by the Plan Commission with two additional changes: the installation of an east-west 
pedestrian barrier from the school basketball court to the driveway off of Columbia Road for the 
duration of the construction and the reduction of the LED lighting standard listed on Page E001 
of the plans from 5000K to 3000K or less. Motion passed unanimously.  
A. Payment of Bills  Mr. Cote reviewed the bills and recommended their payment. Mr. 
Benforado moved and Mr. Wade seconded a motion to approve the payment of the end of March 
bills in the amount of $82,482.19 and $490,289.34 for April expenses, for a total of $572,771.53. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
B. Consent Agenda 
i) March 28, 2016 regular and closed session Board minutes 
ii) Street Use Permits: July 4 Tri-It—Shorewood Hills Elementary PTO; Cruisin’ for a 
Cure—UW Foundation on August 14, 2016 
iii) Block Party Permit: Heiden Haus area–Shorewood Hills Garden Club & League’s Gala 
on the Green II (Garden Club’s 80th Anniversary Celebration) on June 18, 2016 
iv) Hire part time Police officers   

1 of 4 



v) Hire part time seasonal employees for Pool, Four Corners, Land Rec and Forestry  
Mr. Benforado moved and Mr. Wade seconded the approval of the Consent Agenda items without 
the regular minutes of the March 28, 2016 Board meeting and the summer recreation program 
hires. Motion passed unanimously.  
i) March 28, 2016 regular Board minutes  Mr. Benforado moved and Ms. Readel seconded a 
motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of March 28, 2016 with the following 
changes: correction of the spelling of Anita Gallucci’s name in item 6Cii; the revision of the 
second to last sentence in item 6Dviii to read (strikeouts indicated words deleted; italics indicate 
words added): “The property in question then would be could become tax exempt if RMH obtains 
proper state exemption.”; and the addition of a sentence on item 7Jii that reads: “The Committee 
will be reviewing the Community Center rental policies.” Motion passed unanimously. 
v) Hire part time seasonal employees for Pool, Four Corners, Land Rec and Forestry  Ms. 
Borisy-Rudin moved and Mr. Lederer seconded a motion to approve the Land Rec, Four Corners 
and Forestry hires. Motion passed unanimously. Ms. Borisy-Rudin moved and Mr. Wade 
seconded a motion to approve the Pool hires. Motion passed 5-0-2 with Mr. Benforado and Mr. 
Imes recusing themselves since their children were among the Pool employees being considered.  
C. Ordinances  
i) Consider tabled third reading of an Ordinance L-2015-11 amending Section 7.08(5) 
Parking, Stopping and Standing Regulated (weekend two-hour parking restrictions on 
Marshall Court)  Mr. Wade moved and Ms. Readel seconded a motion to remove consideration 
of Ordinance L-2015-11 from the table. Motion passed unanimously. Mr. Benforado moved 
waiving the third reading of Ordinance L-2015-11 and revising it to limit the parking on Marshall 
Court on Saturday and Sunday to two hours, for the period from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. Motion 
failed for lack of a second. Ms. Borisy-Rudin moved and Mr. Wade seconded a motion to table 
Ordinance L-2015-11. Motion passed unanimously. Staff will discuss the parking situation at 
Arbor Crossing and options to increase the parking spaces available to the tenants in Arbor 
Crossing 1 and 2, if the latter is built, with Rich Arnesen, Vice President of Stone House.  
ii) Consider third reading of an Ordinance L-2016-1 repealing and recreating Sec 10-1-93 
and amending Sec. 10-1-100(f) and (g) of the Village Code to comply with Wis. Stat. 66.0404 
regulating wireless telecommunication facilities  Mr. Benforado moved and Ms. Borisy-Rudin 
seconded a motion to waive the third reading of Ordinance L-2016-1 and adopt it with the 
revision of section (b)(3)b(iv) to read (strikeouts indicated words deleted; italics indicate words 
added): “If the decision is to deny the application, the Village Board Administrator shall include 
with the written notification substantial evidence that supports the decision.” Motion passed 
unanimously. 
iii) Consider tabled second reading of an Ordinance L-2016-2 amending section 17.07(10)(b) 
of the municipal code regarding vicious dogs  This item remained tabled.  
D. New Business Resolutions and Motions 
i) Resolution R-2016-5 Discontinuing Right of Way  Village Attorney Matt Dregne of Stafford 
Rosenbaum introduced Resolution R-2016-5 regarding the Village’s discontinuation of a portion 
of Catafalque Drive. The Board reviewed the information but took no action. Resolution R-2016-
5 will be considered further at a future Board meeting.  
ii) Consider approval of multi-party agreement concerning lot line adjustment and 
conveyance of real property involving University Station Shopping Center, Village of 
Shorewood Hills and Marshall Court Investors LLC  Mr. Dregne described the proposed 
agreement. It will involve the exchange of land and expenses to facilitate the extension of the 
bike path on the south side of University Station. The agreement includes actions between 
Marshall Court LLC and University Station Shopping Center that will straighten the lot line 
between the shopping center and 2727 Marshall Court, permitting the construction of additional 
parking spaces—to replace those lost when the bike path is installed—in that area. It also details 
the Village’s obligations to University Station for that portion of the bike path, including: the 

 
2 of 4 

 



payment of $111,200 for the shopping center’s dedication of the land to the Village; up to 
$76,344 for parking lot work, up to $7,634 for construction management; and up to $4,810 for 
landscaping. Mr. Benforado moved and Ms. Readel seconded a motion to approve the multi-party 
agreement subject to the other parties’ signatures on the document, including the attachments. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
iii) Authorize expenses for City of Madison’s University Avenue, and adjoining 
intersections, street marking project  Mr. Lederer moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to 
authorize the payment of $3,500 to the City of Madison for the painting of traffic lines, 
crosswalks and stop bars on the Village side of University Avenue and intersecting streets. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
iv) Authorize additional expenses for horticulture forestry planting projects  Mr. George has 
arranged for Love Madison volunteers to plant trees on the east end of Oxford Road. Ms. Readel 
moved and Mr. Imes seconded a motion to authorize the expenditure of $2,500 for the project. 
Funds for the project will come out of undesignated fund balance if necessary. Motion passed 
unanimously. The Trustees unanimously agreed to add to the motion that approval of the planting 
project would be subject to receiving written permission from the University since a portion of 
the work is on its property.  
 

8. Reports of Officials and Committees 
B. Village Administrator (agenda item taken out of order) 
i) Possible protest petition regarding rezoning of property and response  In response to the 
Plan Commission’s recommendation to approve the GDP for Arbor Crossing 2, Shackleton 
Square resident Michael Stiennon has asked the Village for information about the requirements to 
file a protest petition. If an acceptable protest petition were received, a super majority of the 
Village Board—six of the seven members—would be required to approve the GDP if presented. 
Mr. Frantz reviewed the communication he has had with Dr. Stiennon regarding the matter.  
 
Closed Session  At 10:07 p.m., Mr. Sundquist announced the Trustees would consider going into 
Closed Session per §19.85(1) (e) due to bargaining reasons and may reconvene to open session as 
per Wisconsin State Statutes 19.85(2) to address any business that may be the result of the 
deliberations made in closed session (services payment from Ronald McDonald House; tax 
increment agreement with Marshall Court LLC). The roll call vote was: Mr. Sundquist – yes; Mr. 
Benforado – yes; Mr. Lederer – yes; Mr. Imes – yes; Mr. Wade – yes; Ms. Borisy-Rudin – yes 
and Ms. Readel – yes. Village planner Scott Harrington of Vandewalle and Associates Inc., Mr. 
Dregne, Mr. Cote, Mr. Frantz and Ms. Albrecht were asked to stay. The remaining attendees left 
the meeting.  
 
While in Closed Session the Trustees did not discuss the Ronald McDonald House—its board had 
not met to review the Village’s proposed changes to the “Agreement Concerning Village of 
Shorewood Hills TID No. 3.”   
The Trustees considered the Village’s possible role/goals in the development of Arbor Crossing 
2.  
 
Open Session  At 11:20 p.m., the Board unanimously agreed to reconvene to Open Session.  
 
E. Appointments 
Mr. Sundquist said the Trustee committee appointments for the next 12 months would remain 
unchanged except:  Mr. Benforado will step down from the Finance Committee, Mr. Wade will 
serve as Chair of that committee instead; and Mr. Imes will serve as Chair of the Blackhawk 
Country Club Liaison Committee. 
 

 
3 of 4 

 



 
4 of 4 

 

8. Reports of Officials and Committees 
A. Village President   
i) Affirm June 27, 2016 Board meeting date  Due to travel schedules, the June Board meeting 
has been delayed a week to June 27, 2016. 
C. Personnel Committee  The Committee met this morning to review the proposed recreation 
program hires; the  members voted to recommend them to the Board. They will meet in late May 
to further consider employee compensation.  
F. Public Works Committee  The Committee discussed the striping of Edgehill Drive and the 
redevelopment of the northern end of the street, from Edgehill Parkway to Lake Mendota Drive. 
The installation of an asphalt walkway in that area is being considered. The Committee also 
talked about the painting of University Avenue and its intersections.  
H. Public Health and Safety Committee  The community-wide discussion with Police will be 
May 15, 2016. 
J. Recreation Committee  Plans to create a part-time library, staffed by volunteers, at the old 
Fire Station are moving ahead. The Committee is considering the Community Center rent policies 
and options for the use of the Heiden Haus field. 
K. Parks Committee  A copy of the letter sent to property owners adjacent to park land was 
included in the Board Packet; the Trustees thanked the Committee for the well-written letter. The 
Committee discussed the upcoming Love Madison and Arbor Day activities.  
L. Pool Committee  The Committee is gearing up for the 2016 swim season—membership fees 
are due April 22, 2016. The members discussed facility improvements.   
The remaining Committee chairpersons had nothing further to report.  

 
9. Adjourn  Meeting adjourned at 11:32 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Colleen Boyle Albrecht 
Village Clerk 
 



































































VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 
DANE COUNTY WISCONSIN 

 
ORDINANCE NO. L-2015-11 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 7.08(2) AND 7.08(5) OF THE VILLAGE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES RELATING TO PARKING 
 
 The Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin, 
ordains as follows:  
 
1. Section 7.08(2) and 7.08(5) of the Municipal Code of the Village of Shorewood 

Hills is amended as follows (added text is red and underlined, deleted text is 
stricken out): 

 
7.08  Parking, Stopping, and Standing Regulated. 

(1) Maximum time.  No owner or operator of a motor vehicle or trailer may permit 
the same to be parked upon any highway, street or alley for a period of time in 
excess of twenty-four hours without moving or causing the same to be moved. 

(2) No parking.  No owner or operator of a motor vehicle may permit the same to 
stop, to be parked or to be left standing, upon any portion of the following streets 
at the following locations, except temporarily for the purpose of and while 
actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging 
passengers and while the motor vehicle is attended by a licensed operator so that 
it may be promptly be moved in case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of 
traffic: 

• On the west side of Beloit Court; 
• On east side of Beloit Court during the hours of 6:00 am to 7:00 pm 

(excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) except by resident permit; 
• On the blacktop service road situated east of the Blackhawk Country Club 

clubhouse; 
• On the north side of Blackhawk Drive from its intersection with the easterly 

boundary of Topping Road extended westerly to the easterly line of 
Blackhawk Country Club; 

• On the south side of Blackhawk Drive from its intersection with the westerly 
boundary of Topping Road westerly 240 feet to a point on the north property 
line of lot 163, third addition to Shorewood; 

• On the south side of Blackhawk Drive from the west property line extended of 
lot 46, Shorewood First Addition to the south property line extended of lot 46, 
Shorewood First Addition; 

• On the north side of Blackhawk Drive from a point 25 feet east of the west 
property line extended of lot 119, Shorewood Second Addition to the blacktop 
service road situated east of the Blackhawk Country Club clubhouse; 

• On the easterly side of Bowdoin Road, from Amherst Drive to Oxford Road; 

Page 1 of 6 



• On the north and south sides of Colgate Road, from the University Bay Drive 
intersection to 65.2 feet west of the east property line extended of lot 4, block 
18, of the Beloit Court Replat; 

• On the north side of Circle Close from Blackhawk Drive to the throat of the 
island turnaround.  

• On both sides of Columbia Road from the intersection of University Bay 
Drive to the intersection of Wellesley Road between the hours of 6:00 am and 
7:00 pm (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) except by resident 
permit; 

• On the north side of Columbia Road, from the westerly line extended of lot 
27, block 6, replat of College Hills First Addition to the easterly line extended 
of lot 29, block 6, replat of College Hills First addition; 

• On the west side of Columbia Road from it intersection with Amherst Drive to 
Purdue Street; 

• On the west side of Cornell Court; 
• On the north side of Crestwood Drive from Sunset Drive to the easterly line 

extended of lot 108, Shorewood Second Addition; 
• On the east side of Dartmouth Road from Columbia Road to 125 feet north of 

the Dartmouth/Columbia intersection; 
• On both sides of Edgehill Drive from Crestwood Drive to Viburnum Drive; 
• On the east side of Edgehill Drive from the southerly lot line extended of lot 

137, Shorewood Second Addition northerly to Lake Mendota Drive; 
• On the east side of Edgehill Drive from the midpoint of lot 253, Fourth 

Addition, to a point ten (10) feet south of the southern line of lot 258, Fourth 
Addition; 

• On the east side of Edgehill Drive from a point ten (10) feet  north of the 
southern line of lot 266, Fourth Addition, to a point twenty-five (25) feet 
south of the southern line of lot 268, Fourth Addition; 

• On the westerly side of Edgehill Drive from the intersection with Topping 
Road, northerly to the intersection with Blackhawk Drive and Shorewood 
Boulevard; 

• On both sides of Harvard Drive, from the easterly edge extended of Outlot 
"D" Post Farm, east to a point opposite the westerly line extended of lot 19, 
block 19, Replat of College Hills and College Hills First Addition, and, on the 
south side of Harvard Drive, from the south lot line extended of lot 9, block 
15, Replat of College Hills and College Hills First Addition, north and 
northeasterly around lot 10 to the intersection of Harvard Drive and 
University Bay Drive; 

• On the north side of the 2700 block of Harvard Drive during the hours of 6:00 
am to 7:00 pm  (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays)  except by 
resident permit; 

• On High Close; 
• On Highbury Road from Tally Ho Lane to Topping Road; 
• On the north side of Lake Mendota Drive from a point opposite the easterly 

boundary of the 16th tee of the Blackhawk Country Club, westerly to the 
westerly boundary of the Village; 

Page 2 of 6 



• On the north side of Lake Mendota Drive from the east line extended of lot 3, 
block 4, Shorewood, to the west line extended of lot 6, block 3, Shorewood; 

• On the south side of Lake Mendota Drive from the westernmost boundary of 
lot 131, second addition to Shorewood, to the midpoint of lot 132, second 
addition to Shorewood; 

• On the north side and the south side of Locust Drive from the intersection 
with Shorewood Boulevard westerly to the intersection with the westernmost 
boundary of Maple Terrace extended; 

• On the east side of Maple Terrace and Burbank Place; 
• On the west side of Maple Terrace and Burbank Place between the hours of 

9:00 am and 11:00 am (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays); 
• On the north and west sides of Oak Way, from the westerly edge extended 

from lot 218 of the Third Addition to a point opposite the northerly line 
extended of the southern portion of partial lot 14, First Addition; 

• On south side of Oxford Road from its intersection with Dartmouth Road to 
its intersection with University Bay Drive during the hours of 8:00 am to 3:00 
pm (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays); 

• On the north side of Oxford Road, from University Bay Drive westerly to 
Bowdoin Road; 

• Post Farm Park or the community center parking lot, except for the use of the 
swimming pool, the community center, or the Post Farm Park; 

• On the south side of Purdue Street; 
• On the north side of that portion of Rose Place running in an east-west 

direction from its intersection with the west line of Fern Drive extended to the 
east line of the north-south section of Rose Place extended; 

• On the east side of Shorewood Boulevard between the southerly limits of the 
Village and the northerly limits of the east Entrance Park and on the west side 
between the southerly limits of the Village and the intersection with Topping 
Road; 

• On the east side of Sumac Drive along its entire length; 
• On the east side of Swarthmore Court; 
• On the north side of Tally Ho Lane from its intersection with Shorewood 

Boulevard to the throat of the island turnaround; 
• On the north side of Topping Road from the east corner of lot 225, Shorewood 

third addition to the intersection with Oak Way; 
• On the south side of Topping Road, along the northern boundary of Outlot 

"C" westerly to the intersection with Blackhawk Drive; 
• On the north side of Topping Road from the easterly line extended of lot 168, 

Shorewood third addition, westerly to its intersection with Blackhawk Drive; 
• On the east side of University Bay Drive from the intersection with Colgate 

Road, southerly to the intersection with University Avenue; 
• On west side of University Bay Drive from a point at the northeast corner of 

the Unitarian Church property on University Bay Drive to its intersection with 
Highland Avenue; 

• On the west side of University Bay Drive, from 918 University Bay Drive 
north to its intersection with Harvard Drive, during the hours of 6:00 am to 

Page 3 of 6 



7:00 pm, except by resident permit; 
• On the west side of University Bay Drive from Harvard Drive north to Oxford 

Road, during the hours of 6:00 am to 7:00 pm (excluding Saturdays, Sundays 
and holidays), except by resident permit;  

• On the south side of Viburnum Drive; 
• On the east side of Western Road; 
• On the easterly side of Yale Road from its intersection with Harvard Drive to 

its intersection with Columbia Road.; and 
• From the southwest corner of the intersection of University Bay Drive and 

Harvard Drive running 100 feet south on the west side of University Bay 
Drive. 

(3) No Parking Contrary to Sign.  No owner or operator of a motor vehicle may 
permit the same to stop, to be parked, or to be left standing upon any street 
contrary to any signs posted by the police chief or any police officer.  Such a sign 
may be placed whenever the police chief or any police officer on duty deems it 
necessary for the safety of traffic at any point within fifty feet of any intersection 
of any streets; where free space is necessary for the turning of buses or other 
vehicles; when the open traveled portion of a street is narrowed by excessive 
snow; whenever hazardous conditions are created by construction operations, fire, 
or other casualty; or whenever any celebration or other cause for the assembly of 
crowds, or the orderly handling of large amounts of traffic may require limitation 
of parking on a street. 

(4) Stopping prohibited in certain specified areas.  No owner or operator of any 
vehicle may permit the same to stop, to be parked, or to be left standing, whether 
attended or unattended and whether temporarily or otherwise, at any of the 
following places: 

(a) On the north side of University Avenue from the easterly boundary to the 
westerly boundary of the Village; 

(b) On the school side of Shorewood Boulevard, Bowdoin Road, Amherst 
Drive and Columbia Road adjacent to the Shorewood Hills School 
between the hours of 7:30 am and 4:30 pm during school days, except for 
the following designated loading zones: 

1. The school side of Columbia from its intersection with Amherst to 
a point of intersection with the school parking lot access drive; and 

2. On the school side of Shorewood Boulevard from a point 365 feet 
north of its intersection with Harvard Drive and continuing north 
350 feet; 

(c) Abutting the island in the turnaround at the westerly end of Tally Ho Lane 
in front of the properties with street addresses of 3555, 3562, 3565, 3568, 
and 3570 Tally Ho Lane; 

(d) Abutting the island in the turnaround at the easterly end of Circle Close in 
front of the properties with street addresses of 3403, 3404, 3407, 3408, 
3409, 3410 Circle Close; 

Page 4 of 6 



(e) On the east side of Swarthmore Court between May 25th and September 
9th of each year; and 

(f) On the north side of Purdue Street. 

(g) At all intersection islands to 25 feet past the apex at the following 
intersections: 

1. Dartmouth/Oxford Roads; 
2. Sweetbriar/Oxford Roads; 
3. University Bay Drive/Oxford Road; 
4. University Bay Drive/Columbia Road; 
5. University Bay Drive/Harvard Drive; 
6. Harvard Drive/Cornell Court; 
7. Harvard Drive/Beloit Court; 
8. Colgate/Dartmouth Roads; 
9. Colgate/Yale Roads; 
10. Wood Lane/Lake Mendota Drive; 
11. Sunset/Sumac Drives; 
12. Sunset/Viburnum Drives; 

(5) Two-Hour Parking Zones. 

(a) Residential Two-Hour Parking Zone.  A Residential Two-Hour Parking 
Zone is established.  The Two-Hour Parking Zone consists of all 
residential streets, except for (i) Blackhawk Drive from Topping Road to 
the easterly edge extended of lot 2, First Addition, and (ii) Sunset Drive 
from Blackhawk Drive to Crestwood Drive.  The Residential Two-Hour 
Parking Zone also excludes portions of streets (i) where parking is 
prohibited or restricted as provided at section 7.08 (2), (ii) where stopping 
is prohibited as provided at section 7.08 (4), or (iii) that are in the One-
Hour Zone as provided at section 7.08 (6). 

(b) Marshall Court Two-Hour Parking Zone. The Marshall Court Two-Hour 
Parking Zone consists of areas of Marshall Court where parking is 
allowed, during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., all days of the week. 

(c) Parking Hours.  Except as provided at section 7.09, no owner or operator 
of a motor vehicle may permit the same to be parked or left standing 
within or upon a Two-Hour Parking Zone for a period of more than two 
consecutive hours at any time between the hours of 6:00 am and 7:00 pm 
(excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays). 

(6) One-Hour Parking. 

(a) One-Hour Parking Zone.  A One-Hour Parking Zone is established.  The 
One-Hour Parking Zone consists of the following highways or portions of 
highways:  Dartmouth Road between Columbia and Colgate Roads, 
Colgate Road, the east side of Cornell Court, Harvard Drive from 
Swarthmore Court east to the one-way zone, Wellesley Road, and Fern 
Drive. 

Page 5 of 6 



Page 6 of 6 

(b) Parking Hours.  Except as provided at section 7.09, no owner or operator 
of a motor vehicle may permit the same to be parked or left standing 
within or upon the One-Hour Parking Zone for a period of more than one 
hour at any time between the hours of 6:00 am and 7:00 pm (excluding 
Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays). 

(7) Moving of a Motor Vehicle Within A Parking Zone.  No person may move a 
motor vehicle from a parking space in the One-Hour Parking Zone or in the Two-
Hour Parking Zone to a second parking space in either Zone unless after the 
motor vehicle was moved from the first parking space the motor vehicle was 
removed from both Zones for at least 30 minutes before the motor vehicle was 
parked in the second parking space. 

(8) Tampering With Marks on Tires.  No person may alter, erase, remove, 
obliterate, or tamper with any mark placed on a tire of a vehicle by a Village 
police officer or community service officer.  This provision does not apply to a 
person who removes such a mark by driving the vehicle if that person complies 
with all other parking laws. 

(9) No Parking without Current or Valid Registration.  No motor vehicle 
requiring registration shall be parked on any public street or any property owned 
by the Village of Shorewood Hills; while within the corporate limits of 
Shorewood Hills, Dane county, Wisconsin, without a current or valid registration. 
Any vehicle in violation of said ordinance will require a forfeiture of $25.00 
within the first seven days and a fine of $40.00 thereafter. 

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law. 
 

The above and foregoing ordinance was duly adopted by the Village Board of the 
Village of Shorewood Hills at its meeting held on ____________________, 2016.   
 

APPROVED:  
 
 
       
  Mark Sundquist, Village President 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
       
  Colleen Albrecht, Village Clerk 



, Stafford Rosen ba u ffì Lrp
ê.¡-1.;ra¡i:y'=

To

Re

Menber of LEGUS lnternatíonalNetwotk of Laø Firns

Confidential Memorandum
Privileged Lawyer-Client Communication

Karl P. Frantz, Village Administrator
Village of Shorewood Hills Village Board

From Holly Wilson

Date IMay 12,2016

Vicious Animals Ordinance

The Village asked us to review the Village's vicious animals ordinance. This
memorandum discusses the Village's current ordinance regulating vicious animals and
our suggested changes, including the Public Safety Committee's recommended edits, to
the current ordinance regulating vicious animals.

Currently, $ 17.06(10Xb) of the Village Code, regulating vicious animals, states as

follows:

No vicious dog shall be allowed off the premises of its owner unless
muzzled or on a leash and in the charge of the owner or a member of the
owner's immediate family over sixteen years of age. For purposes of
enforcing this section, a dog shall be deemed as being of a vicious
disposition if, within any twelve month period it bites two or more persons
or inflicts serious injury to one person in unprovoked circumstances off the
owner's premises. Any vicious dog that is found off the premises of its
owners other than as provided above may be seized by any person and,
upon delivery to the proper authorities, Írt&!, upon establishment to the
satisfaction of a court of competent jurisdiction of the vicious character of
said dog by testimony under oath reduced to writing, be killed by the police
authorities.

L:\DOCS\006480\002530\À4EMOS\39Y1 547.DOCX
0512t61422

Madison Office Milwaukee Office

222 West \X/ashington Avenue

P.O. Box 1784

Madison, \X/isconsin

5370r-1784

608.256.0226

888.655.4752

Fax608.259.2600
rvrvl'.staffordlarv. com

1200 North May{air Road

Suite 410

Mihvaukee, \X/isconsin

fi226.3282

4r4.9U.2850

888.655.4752

Fax414982.2889

urunv.staffordlarv.com



Note that the current vicious dog restrictions apply only to conduct that occurs off the
owner's premises, Further, for a dog to be considered a vicious dog, the dog must bite
two people in a l2-month period or inflict serious injury upon a person in unprovoked
circumstances.

I have attached a redlined version of the current ordinance with our suggested changes

based on the Safety Committee's recommendations. The new ordinance deems an animal
vicious if (a) it inflicts serious injury to one or more persons or animals in unprovoked
circumstances; (b) within any two year period, it has two or more incidents of biting one

or more persons or animals in unprovoked circumstances; or (c) within its lifetime, it has

three or more incidents of biting one or more persons or animals in unprovoked
circumstances. If the animal is deemed vicious it must be leashed and muzzled to leave
the owner's premises. The amended ordinance also now allows the Village to regulate
animal bites on and off the owner's premises. Finally, the amended ordinance includes
specific penalties under the vicious animal paragraph as well as a general penalty section
for chapter 17 consistent with the Public Safety Committee recommendations.

Another issue with the Village's current ordinance is that the restrictions contained in the
current $ 17.06(10)(a) are arguably inconsistent. For example, $ 17.06(10)(a)2 states that
an animal that has assaulted or attacked a person or property cannot be in the Village.
Section 17.06(10Xb) defines a vicious dog or animal as a dog or animal that has bitten
two or more persons in a l2-month period off the owner's premises. If the attack under

$ 17.06(10)(a)2 included the dog biting a person off the owner's premises, there is no
reason to have the vicious dog provision that requires a second bite, because the dog
should have already been removed from the Village. Sections 17.06(10Xa)5 and 6 suffer
the same inconsistency. This inconsistency raises questions about how the current code
should be interpreted and enforced. Therefore, I have removed those provisions in the
attached redlined ordinance.

Finally, keep in mind that under state statute if a dog in the Village causes serious injury
to a person or domestic animal on two separate occasions off the owner's property,
without reasonable cause, and the owner of the dog was notified or knew prior to the
second injury, that the dog caused the first injury, the Village may commence a civil
action to obtain a judgment from a court ordering an officer to kill the dog. Wis. Stat.

$ 17a.02(3)(a).

Please let us know if you have any questions, or if we can provide any further assistance

with this matter.

HJ\ü:kps
Attachments

L:\DOCS\00ó480\002530\N4EMOS\39Y1 547.DOCX
0512t6t422 2



1 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS  
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 
ORDINANCE NO. L-2016-2 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SEC. 17.06(10) AND CREATING SEC. 17.09 OF THE  

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS MUNICIPAL CODE 
 
 
 The Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains 
as follows: 
 
1. Section 17.06(10) of the Municipal Code of the Village of Shorewood Hills is amended 

as follows: 
 
17.06  Licensing of Dogs and Cats; Regulation of Animals.  
 
(10)  Restriction on Keeping of Animals.  
 

(a) No person having the possession or ownership of an animal shall:  
 

1. Allow the animal to habitually pursue any vehicle upon any public street or 
alley.  
 
2.Allow the animal to destroy or harm property, including, but not limited to, 
lawns, flower beds, plants, shrubs, trees, or gardens.  
 
3. Allow the animal to run at large within the Village.  The owner of any animal, 
whether licensed or unlicensed, shall keep the animal on a leash, tied, or enclosed 
in a proper enclosure so as not to allow said animal to interfere with the public or 
neighbors. Any animal running at large shall be seized and impounded by an 
officer. A animal shall not be considered to be running at large if it is on a leash 
and under the control of a person physically able to control it or in the company of 
a person to which it immediately responds and obeys, e.g., a dog playing a game 
of fetch in a field, or walking alongside its owner or a member of the owner's 
immediate family over the age of twelve years. 
 
4. Allow the animal to habitually bark, howl, meow, or cry to the annoyance of 
any person or persons.  
 
5. Allow the animal, off the property of its owner, to chase, confront or approach 
a person in a menacing fashion that puts a reasonable person in fear of being 
attacked. 
 

Deleted: It shall be unlawful, for any 
person within the Village to own or keep 
any animal that

Deleted: H

Deleted: s

Deleted:  

Deleted: Assaults or attacks any person 
or property

Deleted: Is

Deleted: -

Deleted: H

Deleted: s

Deleted: s

Deleted: s

Deleted: ies



 2

6. Allow the animal, while on the property of its owner, to chase, confront or 
approach a person on an adjacent public or private property in a menacing fashion 
that puts a reasonable person in fear of being attacked. 
 
.  
 
 
7. Keep or own an animal the person knows to be infected with rabies or to have 
been bitten by an animal known to have been infected with rabies unless the 
animal is being kept in accordance with the requirements of section 17.06(6).  
 
8. Have an unlicensed dog, except in accordance with section 17.06(7)(a)9.  

 
(b) Vicious animals.  
 

1. No vicious animal shall be allowed off the premises of its owner unless 
muzzled and on a leash and in the charge of the owner or a member of the owner's 
immediate family over sixteen years of age.  
 
2.  A vicious animal means:  
 

a. it inflicts serious injury to one or more persons or animals in 
unprovoked circumstances;  
 
b. within any two year period, it has two or more incidents of biting one or 
more persons or animals in unprovoked circumstances; or 
 
c. within its lifetime, it has three or more incidents of biting one or more 
persons or animals in unprovoked circumstances.  

 
3. Any person who violates this paragraph shall forfeit not less than $250.00 and 
not more than $1000.00. 

 
 
(c) Finding of public nuisance. Animals whose behavior violates the provisions of section 
17.06 are declared to be a public nuisance. An animal is considered to be in violation 
when two formal, written complaints are filed with the police department within a four 
week period, or when such behavior is witnessed by an officer.  

 
2. Section 17.09 of the Municipal Code of the Village of Shorewood Hills is created as 

follows: 
 
17.09  Penalties. Except as otherwise provided, any person found to be in violation of any 
provision of this chapter or any order, rule or regulation made under this chapter shall be subject 
to a penalty as provided in section 31.05 in lieu of all other penalties. 

 

Deleted: 5. Habitually kills, wounds, or 
harasses any wild or domestic animal

Deleted: 6. Is known by such person to 
have bitten any person unless the animal 
is being kept in accordance with the 
requirements of section 17.06(6). ¶

Deleted: Is known by such person

Deleted: Is 

Deleted:  dogs

Deleted: dog 

Deleted: or 

Deleted: For purposes of enforcing this 
section, a dog shall be deemed as being of 
a vicious disposition if

Deleted: ,

Deleted: within any twelve month 
period it bites two or more persons or 

Deleted:  off the owner’s premises

Deleted: Any vicious dog that is found 
off the premises of its owners other than 
as provided above may be seized by any 
person and, upon delivery to the proper 
authorities, may, upon establishment to 
the satisfaction of a court of competent 
jurisdiction of the vicious character of 
said dog by testimony under oath reduced 
to writing, be killed by the police 
authorities.

Deleted:  

Deleted: (c) Pets running at large. ¶
¶
1. No dog shall run at large within the 
Village. The owner of any dog, whether 
licensed or unlicensed, shall keep the 
animal tied or enclosed in a proper 
enclosure so as not to allow said animal 
to interfere with the passing public or 
neighbors. Any dog running at large shall 
be seized and impounded by an officer. ¶
¶
2. A dog shall not be considered to be 
running at large if it is on a leash and 
under the control of a person physically 
able to control it or in the company of a 
person to which it immediately responds 
and obeys, e.g., a dog playing a game of 
fetch in a field, or walking alongside its 
owner or a member of the owner's 
immediate family over the age of twelve 
years. ¶

Deleted: d

Deleted: Dogs and cats

Deleted: dog or cat 

Deleted: by different persons 

Deleted: .



 3

3. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law. 
 
 

The above and foregoing ordinance was duly adopted by the Village Board of the Village 
of Shorewood Hills at its meeting held on ____________________, 2016. 

 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
              
         Mark Sundquist, Village President 
 
     ATTEST: 
 
 
              
         Colleen Albrecht, Village Clerk 
 


	May 16 0 Agenda.pdf
	May 16 0 Notes.pdf
	May 16 7A Board Bills.pdf
	May 16 7A a April prepaids.pdf
	May 16 7A b Board Bills May.pdf
	May 16 7A c April real vs budget.pdf

	May 16 7Bi April 18 Minutes.pdf
	May 16 7Bii-vi Consent Agenda.pdf
	May 16 7Biia Her Madison Marathon.pdf
	May 16 7Biib LEO.pdf
	May 16 7Biic July 4 Parade Fireworks.pdf
	May 16 7Biii Block Parties.pdf
	May 16 7Biv Temp Class B Liquor.pdf
	May 16 7Bv Trans Merch LEO.pdf
	May 16 7Bvi DPW Hires.pdf

	May 16 7Ci Ord L-2015-11.pdf
	Mar 28 6Bii Street Use-Block Party.pdf
	Mar 28 6Biia Street Use Trots 4 Tots.pdf
	Mar 28 6Biib Street Use Run for Literacy.pdf
	Mar 28 6Biii Block Party Crestwood.pdf

	Mar 28 6Di R-2016-2 Amend TID 3+Plan+Map.pdf
	RESOLUTION AMENDING THE PROJECT PLAN TO 
	TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 (AMENDMENT NO. 2)

	Mar 28 6Dii R-2016-3 Creating TID 5+Plan+Map+Letter.pdf
	RESOLUTION CREATING TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 5

	Mar 28 6Diii Fee Schedule Memo.pdf
	Memo (fee schedule-2016).pdf
	street-opening-permit-2016.pdf
	Current-Proposed 2016.pdf

	Mar 28 6Dviii ix Hockey Rink Summary.pdf
	Hockey Rink Problems-Solutions.pdf
	Hockey Rink Season.pdf
	Sheet1

	Hockey Rink Layout.pdf

	Mar 28 7F Salt Reduction Grant Summary Report.pdf
	Calibration Chart TK 4.pdf
	Sheet1

	Calibration Chart TK 6.pdf
	Sheet1

	Calibration Chart TK 8.pdf
	Sheet1



	May 16 7Cii a Ord L-2016-2 Vicious Dogs memo.pdf
	May 16 7Cii b Ord L-2016-2 Vicious Dogs v2 redline.pdf


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




